
Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard 

Agenda 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2024 

Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor; Meetings 
will continue to be offered via Zoom see final page for connection 
details. Per Maine CDC, COVID transmission rate is LOW; masks 
are not required.  
 

I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 
Public please hold comments until the Selectboard Chairman opens the agenda items 
for public comment.  When addressing the Board, state your FULL NAME (both in 
person and on Zoom).  It is suggested that you enter your full name as your ID on 
Zoom. 
 

II. Minutes 
A. Approval of minutes from January 16, 2024 meeting 

 
III. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 

A. Consider appointment of Gail Marshall to the Comprehensive Planning Committee as 
LUZO Advisory Committee liaison 

B. Appointment of Carrie Eason as Warden for the March 5, 2024 Presidential Primary 
Election 

C. Appointment of Heidi Smallidge as Deputy Warden for the March 5, 2024 
Presidential Primary Election 

D. Accept resignation of Paul Accomando as Building and Grounds employee effective 
February 16, 2024 
 

IV. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  
Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.) 
A. Survey of Mount Desert Island town’s shellfish license allocations 
B. Small Animal Clinic Contract for 2024 
C. Warrant Committee Minutes of January 23, 2024 
D. A Climate to Thrive Sustainability Committee – Climate Action Plan Update; 

listening session February 7, 2024 
E. Acadia National Park Advisory Commission Minutes for the September 11, 2023 

meeting 
 

V. Selectboard’s Reports 
 

VI. Unfinished Business 
None presented 

 
VII. New Business 

A. Public Space Special Event Application 1-2024 – MDI Farmers’ Market Northeast 
Harbor Village Green; Thursdays 9am – noon from June 27 – August 29, 2024 

B. Public Space Special Event Application 2-2024 – Help Portrait MDI Seal Harbor 
Village Green; Saturday, October 5, 2024; 8am – noon 

 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda February 5, 2024 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

New Business continued 
C. Review and approve contract amendment with Haley Ward for CCA-I for the 

Northeast Harbor Village Center Improvement Project in the amount of $79.290.91 
D. Close of Town Office for election day, March 5, 2024 
E. Consideration of authorizing Fire Chief Mike Bender to purchase a new 2024 6.5-

meter rigid inflatable boat, motor, and trailer from Ribcraft USA in the amount of 
$113,144.00 with said funds to be used from the Fire Department Equipment Reserve 
Account Number 4040300-24471 with a current unencumbered balance of $ 
$436,354.92 

F. Proposed FY25 Revenue Budget review  
G. DRAFT Warrant articles for review and votes 
 

VIII. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other 
Business or out of order.) 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 
B. Discussion of March 4 meeting location 
C. Discussion of Public Hearings for Appropriation of Funds and Ordinances (March 11 

and/or 18) 
 

IX. Treasurer’s Warrants 
A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 

Town Invoices AP#2448 2/5/2024 $970,155.93 
Total   $970,155.93 

 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 

below: 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2445 

1/18/2024  
$1,914.59 

 AP#2446 1/25/2024 $100,852.41 
 AP#2447 1/31/2024 $7,547.26 
Town Payroll PR#2418 1/19/2024 $111,966.96 
 PR#2419 2/2/2024 $167,612.38 
Total   $389,893.60 

 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 

Warrants as shown below: 
School Payroll PR#15 1/19/2024 $200,157.63 
 PR#16 2/2/2024 $93,399.78 
Total   $293,557.41 

 
Grand Total   $1,653,606.94 

 
X. Adjournment 

The next scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Monday, February 26, 2024 in the Meeting Room, 
Town Hall, Northeast Harbor 
 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda February 5, 2024 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  You can call in 
through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.  You will 
need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09 

 
Meeting ID: 248 566 175 

Password: 919872 
 

One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago) 

+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York) 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
Zoom security now requires a password on all zoom meetings, so the recurring BS meeting now 
has a password. 
 
 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09




MINUTES 

  





Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of January 16, 2024 
Page 1 
 

Town of Mount Desert 1 
Selectboard Minutes 2 

 January 16, 2024 3 
 4 

 5 
Board Members Present:  Rick Mooers, Chair John Macauley, Geoff Wood, Wendy Littlefield, 6 
Martha Dudman 7 
 8 
Town Officials Present:  Manager Durlin Lunt, Public Works Director Brian Henkel, Tax 9 
Assessor Kyle Avila, Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk, Police Chief Dave Kerns, CEO Kimberly 10 
Keene, Fire Chief Mike Bender, Finance Director Mae Wyler 11 
 12 
Members of the public were also present. 13 

 14 
 15 

I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 16 
Chair Macauley called the Meeting to order at 6:27 p.m. 17 

 18 
II. Minutes 19 
A. Approval of minutes from January 2, 2024 meeting 20 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval of the January 2, 2024 21 
Minutes as presented. 22 
 23 
VOTE: 24 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 25 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 26 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 27 
Wendy Littlefield:  Abstains 28 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 29 
Motion approved 4-0-1 (Littlefield in Abstention) 30 
 31 

III. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 32 
A. Recognition of the promotion of Mike Vollmer to Mechanical Equipment Operator II 33 

effective January 15, 2024 34 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, recognition of the promotion of 35 
Mike Vollmer to Mechanical Equipment Operator II effective January 15, 2024 36 
 37 
VOTE: 38 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 39 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 40 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 41 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 42 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 43 
Motion approved 5-0. 44 

 45 
 46 



 
 
 

 
 

IV. Consent Agenda  1 
A. Department Reports:  Public Works – Highway, Buildings & Grounds, Solid Waste 2 
B. Shellfish Conservation Committee Management Plan 3 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, acceptance of the Consent Agenda 4 
as presented. 5 
 6 
Town Clerk and Shellfish Committee Member Claire Woolfolk reported that license allocation is 7 
approved by the State, and she explained the licensing process and allocation for both residents 8 
and non-residents.  She noted the Town has not sold many licenses in the past several years.  9 
Clerk Woolfolk promised to speak with the Shellfish Committee and look into the Town’s 10 
allocation in comparison to other communities. 11 
 12 
VOTE: 13 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 14 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 15 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 16 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 17 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 18 
Motion approved 5-0. 19 
 20 
V. Selectboard’s Reports 21 
Ms. Dudman asked for a report on the recent storm damage and plans for remediation.  Manager 22 
Lunt shared that the Harbormaster reported an estimated $400,000.00 in damages occurring at 23 
the marina.  Public Works Director Henkel and Fire Chief Bender reported Seal Harbor was the 24 
village hardest hit by the storm.  Damages include Seal Harbor Beach, the sidewalk, restroom, 25 
the pier, roadways, and damage at Dodge Point includes both municipal property and private 26 
property.  Chief Bender filed for first assessment of damage with FEMA.  Figures will likely 27 
vary but as of now, the estimate is $152,400.00 worth of damage. 28 
 29 
Chair Macauley noted there are residents with commercial interests in the water, and no access to 30 
internet or the wherewithal to report damage.  He wondered if there were plans to assist residents 31 
in reporting. 32 
 33 
Clerk Woolfolk reported the Town Clerk’s office printed information to have available for 34 
residents.  Residents can report via phone.  She suggested setting up a laptop in the Town Office. 35 
 36 
Chief Bender offered to help residents report as well.  37 

 38 
VI. Unfinished Business 39 

A. Review of proposed Short-term Rental Ordinance 40 
Chair Macauley stated the discussion was a Selectboard review and not a public hearing.    41 
 42 
Mr. Wood shared a summary of the proposed ordinance pulled together by Mr. Musson, Town 43 
Manager Lunt, Ms. Dudman, and Mr. Wood.  He summarized the key points: 44 

- There are two types of rental properties proposed: 45 
o Properties that serve as a primary residence and also are rented short term.  They 46 

will be called “Short Term Rentals”.  47 



 
 
 

 
 

o Properties that do not serve as primary residences and are rented short term, 1 
meaning 30 days or less, will be called “Vacation Rentals”.   2 

- Such terminology will assist the Town in determining how many and what types of rental 3 
properties in Mount Desert exist.   4 

- Anyone currently renting their properties, whether a primary residence or not, can 5 
continue to do so if they obtain/renew license.   6 

- License costs will be used to fund an assistant to the CEO who will, in part, manage the 7 
licensing process.   8 

- This ordinance will attempt to limit residential properties sold as investment rentals, by 9 
capping the number of vacation rentals which are eligible to be licensed as “Vacation 10 
Rentals”.   11 

- All current “Vacation Rentals” will be grandfathered.  Such rentals can be passed down 12 
through the family.   13 

- The ordinance will not require the homeowner to be on premises.  14 
- A minimum number of nights or restrictions on how a property owner chooses to market 15 

and/or tailor their rental property will not be required.  16 
- Inspections aren’t required, provided the owner attests to the meeting of local building 17 

codes and safety standards. 18 
- Signs identifying a property as a rental will not be required on the property.   19 
- The ordinance will not impact whether a resident is allowed to build or add potential 20 

short-term units on their property. 21 
 22 
Mr. Musson reported there may be more changes, as the ordinance is further considered.  He 23 
noted consideration is being given to the idea of further differentiating a seasonally restricted 24 
cottage, meaning cottages that were only seasonal uses and not year-round. 25 
 26 
Mr. Mooers reported on a letter received by the Town alleging that portions of the ordinance 27 
might be considered unconstitutional by the supreme court.  Mr. Musson agreed to look into it.  28 
He has been reviewing the ordinance with the Town Attorney.  Also, other Towns in Maine have 29 
similar requirements in their ordinances.  Mr. Wood believed the point is that the Town does not 30 
know how many eligible residences are owned as investment properties.  There is a concern that 31 
too many homes that could be part of the housing stock are sold to buyers who don’t intend to 32 
use them as residences.  That being said, anyone who currently owns an investment property will 33 
be allowed to use it as they already are.  No attempt will be made to cull that number.  34 
 35 
Chair Macauley noted that the LUZO states that if any portion of the ordinance is found to be 36 
invalid, it does not invalidate the rest of the ordinance.    37 
 38 
Chair Macauley thanked Mr. Musson, and Board Members Dudman and Wood for their hard 39 
work.   40 
 41 
B. Request extension for the enforcement of accrual maximums to June 30, 2024, for all 42 

employees, including those within a bargaining unit 43 
Manager Lunt noted HR manager Zach Harris was online. 44 
 45 
Mr. Harris reported that previously the request was submitted to sunset the accrual maximum 46 
on December 31.  With bargaining unit negotiations opening in January, it doesn’t align well 47 



 
 
 

 
 

with having productive negotiations with the Town’s bargaining unit.  The proposal is to shift 1 
the sunset to June 30.  Additionally, the thought behind sunsetting the accrual maximums is to 2 
roll out an accrual cash-out policy which was previously brought to the Board.  That policy is 3 
not yet ready.  The delay in rollout is the reason for this request.   4 
 5 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, extension for the enforcement of 6 
accrual maximums to June 30, 2024, for all employees, including those within a bargaining 7 
unit, as requested. 8 
 9 
Ms. Littlefield asked whether this was only affecting the accrual of time and has nothing to do 10 
with the fact that bargaining unit negotiations are still underway, with regard to money.  Mr. 11 
Harris explained that there are caps in place on accruals.  Those accrual caps were not enforced 12 
during the covid pandemic, resulting in accruals growing to above the maximum.  If the Town 13 
were to start the enforcement of that maximum now, a large portion of the employees, 14 
including the bargaining unit, would be impacted.  The Town wants to roll out a cash-out 15 
policy to help minimize that impact.  The policy is not yet ready.  A further extension is 16 
warranted to avoid any adverse impact.   17 
 18 
Mr. Mooers stated that historically, the town has faced the problem where a small number of 19 
Town employees ended up accruing so much time that the Selectboard had to make a plan to 20 
bring them into compliance.  Moving the timeline to the end of the fiscal year when faced with 21 
those problems made it easier to financially manage rather than having the time fragmented.  22 
Mr. Mooers recalled it working out well for both the Town and the employees.  He supported 23 
such a move to the end of the fiscal year.   24 
 25 
VOTE: 26 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 27 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 28 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 29 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 30 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 31 
Motion approved 5-0. 32 
 33 

C. Consider approval of additional authorization of the use of $1,425.23 from the Town Office 34 
Building Reserve account 4050100-24570 for window replacement 35 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of additional 36 
authorization of the use of $1,425.23 from the Town Office Building Reserve account 37 
4050100-24570 for window replacement as presented. 38 
 39 
VOTE: 40 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 41 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 42 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 43 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 44 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 45 
Motion approved 5-0. 46 
 47 



 
 
 

 
 

D. Proposal for Enhanced Law Enforcement Services in Tremont 1 
Police Chief Kerns reported that the Town of Tremont has reached out to him about working 2 
with the Towns of Mount Desert and Bar Harbor for 24/7 police coverage in their Town.  3 
Tremont has asked for an official proposal from the Mount Desert/Bar Harbor Police 4 
Department that they can then take to their Town Meeting.   5 
 6 
Currently the Towns of Mount Desert and Bar Harbor have three police officers on duty at all 7 
times.  A fourth full-time officer on duty would be necessary to ensure appropriate coverage 8 
for incorporating Tremont and complying with State-mandated coverage.  Four additional 9 
officers would need to be hired to accommodate that fourth full-time position.  Chief Kerns felt 10 
Tremont would have to cover the cost of additional officers.   11 
 12 
Chair Macauley worried about the officers hired for the coverage if, a few years into the future, 13 
Tremont decided to move in another direction with their police coverage needs.  Mr. Wood 14 
pointed out that the Towns of Mount Desert and Bar Harbor already had existing police 15 
departments when they decided to work together as one.  Tremont does not have a police 16 
department and such an addition is a large change, particularly since the Town of Southwest 17 
Harbor does not appear to want to be involved.  Ms. Littlefield noted the proximity of Mount 18 
Desert to Bar Harbor is part of what makes the current system work.  Tremont is miles away 19 
and the Town of Southwest Harbor is in between for much of the area.  Just the timeline of an 20 
officer’s availability and travel time is concerning.  She worried about the impact this would 21 
make on the Towns of Mount Desert and Bar Harbor.  Ms. Dudman inquired whether Chief 22 
Kerns felt four additional officers could be found.  Chief Kerns agreed a realistic timeline for 23 
finding, hiring, and training an additional four officers is not realistically going to happen 24 
quickly.   25 
 26 
It’s a big question that both Mount Desert and Bar Harbor must consider.  Tremont reached out 27 
to Bar Harbor as well.  Chief Kerns stated this was not as simple as signing into a one-year 28 
contract with Tremont.  It needs to be well thought out and Tremont would need to understand 29 
that they would be covering the expenses and the Towns of Mount Desert and Bar Harbor 30 
would be under no obligation should Tremont decide to end the contract.  The four additional 31 
officers would be employees specifically hired for this contracted work. 32 
 33 
Ms. Dudman stated that if police officers can be found, and the Towns can come to an 34 
agreement, she’s in favor of it, as long as the contracts are well constructed.  All parts of the 35 
island need to be safe for all of us to be safe.  Chair Macauley agreed. 36 
 37 
Mr. Wood agreed with Ms. Dudman and noted that the village of Pretty Marsh abuts Tremont.  38 
Parts of Tremont are closer to Mount Desert than they are to Southwest Harbor.  But the 39 
problem can’t be solved in the timeframe Tremont is hoping for.  He felt it would take work, 40 
and the Southwest Harbor Police Department needs to be involved.   41 
 42 
Chief Kerns noted there have been prior conversations with the Town of Southwest Harbor, but 43 
none have taken place with the new police chief.  The request came from Tremont.  Mount 44 
Desert shares a border with Tremont.  Logistical planning includes splitting the coverage area 45 
up into policing zones.  Researching call volume and information gathering from the sheriff 46 
and state police will be necessary.  Any proposal would have to come back to the Town before 47 



 
 
 

 
 

it’s presented to Tremont.  Chief Kerns is looking for an opinion from the Town on whether he 1 
should spend the time.   2 
 3 
Mr. Mooers believed it worthwhile to see what a detailed proposal would look like.  The 4 
amount of work involved is considerable, but it merits the effort in order to make an informed 5 
decision.  He agreed it was something the Town of Tremont would have to fund, including 6 
extra personnel, cruisers, and equipment.  Mr. Mooers offered his services regarding 7 
identifying the administrative, command structures, and zoning logistics. 8 
 9 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of the work to research 10 
and create a proposal for Enhanced Law Enforcement Services in Tremont. 11 
 12 
VOTE: 13 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 14 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 15 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 16 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 17 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 18 
Motion approved 5-0. 19 

 20 
VII. New Business 21 

A. Request authorization to release up to $9,850.00 from the Police Department Capital 22 
Reserve Account #4040100-24405 with a current unencumbered balance of $126,060.72 23 
for the December 2023 cruiser purchase upfit and the decommission of cruiser #4113 24 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorization to release up to 25 
$9,850.00 from the Police Department Capital Reserve Account #4040100-24405 with a 26 
current unencumbered balance of $126,060.72 for the December 2023 cruiser purchase upfit 27 
and the decommission of cruiser #4113 as presented. 28 
 29 
VOTE: 30 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 31 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 32 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 33 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 34 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 35 
Motion approved 5-0. 36 

 37 
B. Consideration of authorizing Fire Chief Mike Bender to purchase a new 2024 GMC Sierra 38 

3500HD Crew Cab pick-up truck in the amount of $56,320.00 with said funds to be used 39 
from the Fire Department Equipment Reserve Account Number 4040300-24471 with a 40 
current unencumbered balance of $863,423.92 41 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorizing Fire Chief Mike 42 
Bender to purchase a new 2024 GMC Sierra 3500HD Crew Cab pick-up truck in the amount of 43 
$56,320.00 with said funds to be used from the Fire Department Equipment Reserve Account 44 
Number 4040300-24471 with a current unencumbered balance of $863,423.92 as presented. 45 
 46 



 
 
 

 
 

Ms. Dudman noted the narrative received by the Board states it’s being purchased from 1 
Darling’s in one place and Varney’s in another. Chief Bender clarified the purchase will be 2 
made with Varney’s.  The truck will not be a hybrid.  Trucks of this size are not yet made as 3 
hybrids. 4 
 5 
Mr. Wood noted the vehicle chosen is the highest of the bids received.  Chief Bender stated 6 
that the other dealers would not provide a date of availability.  The current truck won’t pass 7 
inspection.  The GMC is the only available truck now.   8 
 9 
VOTE: 10 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 11 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 12 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 13 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 14 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 15 
Motion approved 5-0. 16 
 17 

C. Consideration of authorizing Fire Chief Mike Bender to purchase a new 2024 Ford E450 18 
Super Duty ambulance in the amount of $370,749.00 with said funds to be used from the Fire 19 
Department Equipment Reserve Account Number 4040300-24471 with a current 20 
unencumbered balance of $492,674.92 21 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorizing Fire Chief Mike 22 
Bender to purchase a new 2024 Ford E450 Super Duty ambulance in the amount of 23 
$370,749.00 with said funds to be used from the Fire Department Equipment Reserve Account 24 
Number 4040300-24471 with a current unencumbered balance of $492,674.92 as presented. 25 
 26 
Chief Bender reported it will take three years to receive the new ambulance.  Per agreement, 27 
the Northeast Harbor Ambulance Service was given a Right of First Refusal on the ambulance 28 
being replaced.  If they choose not to exercise that right, the Town will try to trade it in.  The 29 
price was clarified to be $370,749.00. 30 
 31 
VOTE: 32 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 33 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 34 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 35 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 36 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 37 
Motion approved 5-0. 38 
 39 

D. Authorize Public Works Superintendent, Ben Jacobs, to purchase a new 2025 International 40 
Cab & Chassis from Colwell Diesel for $105,000.00 with funds from the Public Works 41 
Equipment Reserve account number 4050100-24500 with an approximate unencumbered 42 
balance of $266,013.75 43 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, authorizing Public Works 44 
Superintendent Ben Jacobs to purchase a new 2025 International Cab & Chassis from Colwell 45 
Diesel for $105,000.00 with funds from the Public Works Equipment Reserve account number 46 
4050100-24500 with an approximate unencumbered balance of $266,013.75 as presented. 47 



 
 
 

 
 

VOTE: 1 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 2 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 3 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 4 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 5 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 6 
Motion approved 5-0. 7 
 8 
E. Review of FY 2025 Budgets:  Public Works, and Capital Improvement Plans (CIP) 9 

Durlin sent a memo tying all the budgets reviewed so far together.  It includes a final count on 10 
the CIP.   11 
 12 
Director Henkel noted that as previously discussed, there are several expenses that reflect 13 
being moved completely into the CIP, rather than spending from various accounts as had been 14 
previously done, and the CIP reflects as being fully funded.  Some items have now been zeroed 15 
out.  Moving the money out of various other accounts and into the CIP is a 1:1 match.  Director 16 
Henkel also reminded the Board of the hope to fully fund the CIP.  Manager Lunt stated the 17 
Police Department has followed suit with their CIP accounts.   18 
 19 
If the CIP were fully funded, it would remain essentially flat moving forward, except for 20 
adjusting for price increases on equipment.  The CIP would have to be adjusted annually, but a 21 
fully funded CIP would make it a smoother process.  Manager Lunt felt this was a good year to 22 
fully fund the CIP.  The debt has gone down, and the Town has budgeted well for several 23 
years, making this an opportune time.  Manager Lunt noted that changes to the CIP include 24 
equipment from both Public Works and Police being moved to CIP.  Additionally, Finance 25 
Director Wyler identified some items that were underfunded.  If the Town is not happy with 26 
the CIP as proposed, funding for some of these things would have to be reallocated elsewhere.   27 
 28 
Finance Director Wyler noted $173,000.00 was added to the debt service budget savings to add 29 
to the reserves.  This savings could be used to offset the cost of future bond payments.  Since 30 
the Town no longer has payments on bonds that matured, this is an amount the Town can add 31 
to the CIP to gain interest. 32 
 33 
Mr. Wood asked about waste management increases.  Director Henkel reported work is still 34 
moving forward to bring the Hampden facility online.  Some towns bring trash to it and testing 35 
was done on the front operations at the facility. A few changes have been deemed necessary.  36 
This will extend the timeline a little.  The Town will direct their recycling to the facility once 37 
it’s fully functional.  At that point the Town will not be paying for their recycling.  Currently, 38 
the Town is paying for recycling.  He recalled an overage in the solid waste budget in a prior 39 
year being due to having to take the recycling elsewhere.   40 
 41 
Electricity for Public Works was discussed.   42 
 43 
Mr. Mooers asked about the workers compensation budget line item.  It appears to be a 1244% 44 
increase.  Manager Lunt noted the increase was in connection to Buildings and Grounds.  45 
Manager Lunt noted it’s hard to tell why it changes because it’s within payroll.  The amount on 46 



 
 
 

 
 

worker’s compensation usually comes out near the budgeted amount, however where it was 1 
spent often does not. 2 
 3 
Warrant Committee Chair Phil Lichtenstein believed that moving expenses to the CIP will aid 4 
in transparency.  Residents have had questions about it in years past.   5 

 6 
VIII. Other Business 7 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 8 
Chair Macauley asked Public Works Director Henkel about DOT plans to raise the roads along 9 
the coves.  Director Henkel has heard of no such plans.  He didn’t believe there were any easy 10 
solutions.  This is likely a good time to begin such discussions.   11 
 12 
Manager Lunt reminded the Board that the Warrants will need to be signed, and requested 13 
members come to the Town Office to do so. 14 

 15 
IX. Treasurer’s Warrants 16 

A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 17 
Town Invoices AP#2444 01/17/2024 $414,556.01 
Total   $414,556.01 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval and signature of 18 
Treasurer’s Warrant as shown above. 19 
 20 
VOTE: 21 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 22 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 23 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 24 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 25 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 26 
Motion approved 5-0. 27 
 28 

B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown below: 29 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2442 

 
01/05/2024 

 
$102,215.53 

 AP#2443 01/12/2024 $61,533.04 
Town Payroll PR#2416 01/05/2024 $157,870.16 
 PR#2417 01/09/2 

024 
$749.49 

Total   $322,368.22 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval of Signed Treasurer’s 30 
Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown above. 31 
 32 
VOTE: 33 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 34 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 35 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 36 
Wendy Littlefield:  Abstains 37 



 
 
 

 
 

Marth Dudman:  Aye 1 
Motion approved 4-0-1 (Littlefield in Abstention) 2 
 3 

C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 4 
Warrants as shown below: 5 

School Invoices AP#7 01/03/2024 $63,124.36 
School Payroll PR#14 01/05/2024 $92,718.52 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
V#2404 

 
01/10/2024 

 
-$1,753.00 

Total   $154,089.88 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, acknowledgement of Treasurer’s 6 
Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll Warrants as shown above. 7 
 8 
VOTE: 9 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 10 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 11 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 12 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 13 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 14 
Motion approved 5-0. 15 
 16 
Grand Total   $891,014.11 

 17 
X. Adjournment 18 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Littlefield seconding, to adjourn. 19 
 20 
VOTE: 21 
Rick Mooers:  Aye 22 
Geoff Wood:  Aye 23 
Chair John Macauley:  Aye 24 
Wendy Littlefield:  Aye 25 
Martha Dudman:  Aye 26 
Motion approved 5-0. 27 
 28 
Meeting adjourned 7:35 p.m. 29 
 30 
 31 
Respectfully submitted, 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
Geoffrey Wood 36 



APPOINTMENTS 

RECOGNITIONS 

RESIGNATIONS 

  





From: Jerry Miller
To: Town Clerk
Subject: Re: LUZO liaison for Comprehensive Plan Committee
Date: Thursday, January 18, 2024 8:03:15 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Claire,
The LUZO Advisory Comm. Voted for GAil MArshall as our liaison to the Comp Plan Comm
Take care,
Jerry Miller
 
 

mailto:neolud@gmail.com
mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org


 

 
T:\Clerk\ELECTIONS\STATE Elections\2024\3-5-2023 Presidential Primary\Warden, Election Clerks and Registrar\Warden\BOS warden approval 
memo.docx 
 

Town of Mount Desert 
Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone     207-276-5531 Fax     207-276-3232 
E-mail  townclerk@mtdesert.org  Web Address

 www.mtdesert.org 
  

 
MEMO 

 
DATE: February 1, 2024 
 
TO: Board of Selectmen 
 
FROM: Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
 
RE: March 5, 2024 Presidential Primary Election 
 
 
Pursuant to 21-A §501, I request that the Board of Selectmen, by recorded vote, approve the appointment 
made by the Town Clerk, of Carrie Eason as Warden and Heidi Smallidge as Deputy Warden for the 
March 5, 2024 Presidential Primary Election. 

Thank you. 
 
 

mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/






CONSENT AGENDA 

  





 

Clerk Memo - Shellfish Allocations.docx 

Town of Mount Desert 
Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone     207-276-5531 Fax     207-276-3232 
E-mail  townclerk@mtdesert.org  Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
 

MEMO 
 
DATE:  January 29, 2024 
 
TO:  Selectboard 
 
FROM: Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk  
 
RE:  Mount Desert Island Town’s Shellfish License Allocations 
 
 
At your direction, I conducted a survey of the other area towns to determine if our shellfish 
license allocations are comparable to other local towns. 
 
Mount Desert’s allocations are: 
 
 Class  Subclass  Amount  
Commercial  Resident  9  
Commercial  Nonresident  1  
Recreational  Resident  No Limit Set  
Recreational  Nonresident  No Number Set*  

 
 *One to one (one non-resident for every resident license sold) up to 10 licenses; then one non-
resident license for every 5 (five) resident licenses sold. 
 
Bar Harbor - Department of Marine Resources determines allocations per their ordinance; 

(unlimited) 
 
Southwest Harbor – No commercial licenses sold; they only monitor recreational licenses 

(unlimited for both residential and non-residential) 
 
Tremont – No allocations – don’t sell recreational or commercial licenses 
 
Trenton – They are part of the Frenchman Bay Shellfish Collective (7 towns) 
  Commercial is run through Franklin (60 commercial harvesters) 
  Recreational licenses are unlimited 

mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/






 

 

 TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
WARRANT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
Minutes from: 

Tuesday, January 23, 2024  6:00PM 
 
 
Northeast Harbor Meeting Hall and via Zoom  

Members Present: Phil Lichtenstein, Katrina Carter, Tim Murphy, Mike 
Olsen, Lauren Kuffler, Jamie Blaine, Blakeslee Bell, Owen Craighead, 
Rosemary Matchak, Donna Beals, Carmen Sanford, Alan Kimmerly 

Zoom: Craig Roebuck, Jerry Miller, Kathy Miller, Stephanie Reece, Megan 
Bailey 

Excused: Bill Ferm, Jesse Hartson 

Absent: Marina McGarr  

Guests: Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk; Lisa Young, Tax Collector; Kyle Avila, 
Tax Assessor; Mae Wyler, Treasurer/Finance Director; Durlin Lunt, Town 
Manager 

1. 6:00pm  Call Meeting to order, announcements, schedule revisions 
 

2. 6:10pm  Claire Woolfolk discussed small revisions to her budget. She 
fielded a few questions concerning stipends for the planning board 
and election volunteers. 

3. 6:25pm  Lisa Young briefly discussed her budget and fielded a couple 
of line item questions, 

4. 6:30pm Kyle Avila described his budget as mostly flat except a rise in 
postage in anticipation of answering many inquiries concerning 
projected increases in valuations.  He stated that a significant number 
of valuations updated in 2022 “undershot” by as much as 20%.  Kyle 
also described how the tax rate would likely drop to offset the 
increases in valuation. 



 

 

5. 6:40  Mae Wyler briefly discussed her budget, of note were increases 
in funding for personnel training. 

6. 7:00pm  Durlin Lunt began by describing the history of the Capital 
Improvement Plan which will, as of 2024 begin to be fully funded on a 
year over year basis.  The CIP was created to replace and centralize 
the various reserve accounts held by all the various deponents within 
the Town.  In discussing the general budget, Durlin fielded questions 
regarding contingency funds, healthcare expense fluctuations and 
salaries needing to stay in step with cost of living and inflation. 

7. 7:50pm  Adjournment 
 

Upcoming Meeting: Tuesday, January 30 at 6:00pm at the meeting hall and 
by Zoom. Focus: Public Safety Budget Review with Police Chief Dave 
Kerns and Fire Chief Mike Bender  
  

Respectfully submitted,  

Owen Craighead Recording Secretary  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  





1 | P a g e

DRAFT 
ACADIA NATIONAL PARK ADVISORY COMMISSION MEETING 

Schoodic Institute – Moore Auditorium Meeting Room 
Winter Harbor, Maine 

September 11, 2023 1:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
ATTENDANCE:  

Ben ‘Lee’Worcester, Chair 
G. Bruce Wiersma, Vice Chair 
Fred Ehrlenbach, Member 
Jacqueline Johnston, Member 
Carolyn Gothard, Member 
Matt Horton, Member 
Ken Smith, Member 
Kendall Davis, Member 
Howie Motenko, Member 

    Bonnie Newsom, Member 
    Stephen Shea, Member 

Carl Brooks, Member 
Kevin Schneider, Superintendent, ANP 
Brandon Bies, Deputy Superintendent, ANP 
Darren Belskis, Chief of Visitor & Resource Protection, ANP 
Keith Johnston, Chief of Facilities, ANP 
Amanda Pollock, Public Affairs Officer, ANP 
John Kelly, Management Assistant, ANP 
Rebecca Cole-Will, Chief of Resource Management 
Joy Absher, Chief of Visitor Experience & Education 
Mike Eastman, Supervisory Ranger, Schoodic  
Eric Stiles, President & CEO, Friends of Acadia 
Stephanie Clement, Vice President of Conservation, Friends of Acadia  
Nick Fisichelli, President & CEO, Schoodic Institute 
Congressional Representatives 
Members of the Public 
Staff of ANP  
News Media  
 

ABSENT MEMBERS:  
    None 
 
PLATFORM: In-person & Virtual via Zoom 
 
 
 
OPENING REMARKS  
 
The Commission Chair, Ben (Lee) Worcester, called the meeting of the Acadia National Park Advisory 
Commission, Monday, September 11, 2023, 1:04 p.m. to order.  
 



2 | P a g e

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
 
A motion was not made to accept the agenda for the September 11, 2023, meeting 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  
 
A motion was made by Fred Ehrlenbach and seconded by Carolyn Gothard to accept the minutes of June 
05, 2023. All approved, no opposed, Motion carries. 
 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT  
 
WELCOME – Kevin Schneider, Superintendent 
 
  
 Introductions  (Kevin Schneider) 

  
• Introduction of Joy Absher, Chief of Visitor Experience & Education.  
• Mike Eastman is our new supervisory ranger here on the Schoodic peninsula.   
• Dave Schlag is the new trails foreman and fills the position that Gary Stellpflug was in for 

many years.  
• Lastly, we've hired Matt Outhier to be in a new position as Chief of Project Management.  

 
Park Updates (Kevin Schneider) 

• Concessions 
• Concessions prospectuses are out for bid.  The Wildwood Stables concession 

prospectus was released in July. Those bids are due on September 15th. 
• Concession led bus tours in Acadia was released in June. Proposals are due at 

the end of September.  There will be three contracts for three different 
businesses providing bus tours. This will eliminate full size motor coaches 
from the Park Loop Road and Cadillac Mountain Road. 
 

• Visitation 
▪ 2023 was very busy. Visitation is down 2% compared to 2022, but up 16% 

when compared to the pre-pandemic averages. Changes are coming from 
early and late season visitation.  July and August have not changed very 
much.  Where we see the increases are in the months from March-June.  
 
The reservation system at Cadillac Mountain has gone very well this 
summer. We saw a smaller, lower number of reservations sold this summer 
so far.  We think in large part due to weather in the month of June. We see 
many sales occurring within 48-hours of the reservation time. Whether or not 
a person shows up for a reservation seems to be correlated with when the 
reservation was purchased.  Somebody who purchases a reservation at the 
earliest possible time, 3 months in advance, are less likely to show up than 
somebody who purchases the day before. 
 



3 | P a g e

• Economic Impact 
▪ Traffic on Thompson Island bridge is up by about 2% this summer according 

to the Maine DOT data. That's interesting giving that our visitation is down 
about 2%. Visitors have an extraordinary economic impact on our 
surrounding communities. They generate about $479 million in visitor 
spending and 6,700 jobs in local communities within 60 miles of the park. 
   

• Recruitment 
• This last summer we wanted to fill 175 summer seasonal positions and we 

only filled approximately, 115.  That's comparable to last year. We had a 
much more difficult time recruiting for positions, particularly in the trades, 
trail crews, heavy equipment operators, people required to have a driver’s
license to operate equipment, custodians, fee collectors, lifeguards, and 
emergency service rangers. We did not have lifeguards or emergency service 
rangers the last few seasons. And hiring for next season begins again today. 
We have a number of headwinds for filling these positions; housing, pay, a 
job market here which is hot for these labor related positions, and the federal 
hiring process and how long it takes to onboard people.  And there are unique 
resume requirements that can result in people not being selected for a 
position. A federal resume is very different from a private sector resume.  It 
requires a lot more information. There's a lot more detail that is required and 
our positions require background checks to be a federal employee. So, we are 
stepping up the recruitment effort to try to boost our hiring and we are 
working in collaboration with Friends of Acadia. We have been sponsoring 
resume writing workshops within the local community as well as 
communicating how to apply for a federal job. We have been reaching out 
through social media posts highlighting the positions our employees fill and 
the types of jobs available. We are also advertising jobs beyond USA jobs, 
which is the normal federal hiring website. You will be hearing more about 
these efforts over the next 6-12 month.  
 

Inflation Reduction Act (Brandon Bies) 
 

• The Inflation Reduction Act, signed by the President a year ago last summer, is important 
to the park service.  It provided $500 million to the National Park Service for staffing.  A 
key piece is that it is not an annual appropriation but a one-time lump of $500 million and 
it must be expended by 2030.  That money is then split up among all 425 units of the 
National Park Service.  Ultimately, Acadia National Park will be receiving $3.25 million, 
as well as St. Croix Island and International Historic Site, which we also manage. So, 
between the two parks we will be $3.25 million dollars.  These monies are to be spent on 
either term positions, which is full time but hired only for a term between one and, 
typically, four years, or on permanent positions.  But if it is a permanent position, we 
must absorb the position into our current operating budgets because these funds go away 
and must be spent by 2030. And so, the guidance that we received from the Washington 
office is that these positions should be transformational positions that allow us to either 
change the way we do things or operations, adjust to the way things are going now, or 
deal with a specific backlog, a one-time thing.  We have a mix of those positions and we 
have ten positions  which we are recruiting for.  
 



4 | P a g e

The first couple were to respond to our increasing visitation, especially our increasing 
call volume and dispatch center and search and rescue operations.  Those numbers have 
gone way up so we are looking at hiring a full-time, permanent Search and Rescue and 
Emergency Services Coordinator and an additional dispatcher for our dispatch operation.  
Next, we have a Youth Engagement and Stewardship Coordinator, and a park housing 
maintenance position. With the increase in housing, we need somebody to continue to 
help us deal with the issues that we have at housing.  We have more positions to maintain 
our housing and a part-time fleet manager.  Our total fleet for Acadia National Park is 
about 265 pieces of equipment total and we need somebody to help manage all of that. 
These will all be permanent positions.  And then there are a number of short-term 
positions - an IT Specialist, Archivist, Wildlife Biotech, and a GIS Data Manager.   
 
We are also working with Joy, who was just onboarded, to hire a position or positions to 
be determined to help with our Interpretation and Education programming.  And then 
finally I would say that Saint Croix is hiring a four-year Youth Outreach and Education 
Program Coordinator and that position is advertised right now.  That's a little bit of 
information about how we are using the Inflation Reduction Act funding.   
 

Housing (Brandon Bies) 
  

• In June, I reported we have made some great strides on employee housing. First, I want to 
recognize that we are making great progress, thanks to Friends of Acadia.  We have 10 
beds at the Kingsleigh Inn to support park and Friends of Acadia staff. Thanks to Friends 
of Acadia funding, they have also supported work on our current housing inventory. Eric 
will speak a little later about some housing updates on Jordan Pond Road.  
 
The park has received funding for the design phase to build out Harden Farms on Kebo 
Street in Bar Harbor.  Currently, it is eight, one-bedroom units that date back to the late 
1950s-early 60s. We are excited to announce that, as of last week, we have a contract for 
the design and a local engineering firm that we work with frequently here in Acadia who 
will be handling the design process for the buildout of Harden Farms.  We hope to have 
the design process completed by this spring. We are looking at building about 56 +/- at 
that location in two phases. Some units will be 8-bed suites to include private bedrooms 
with a shared Jack & Jill bath, common space, and shared kitchen. We will also have a 
number of one-bedroom, single efficiency private units.  Ultimately, we are planning on 
four buildings of suites (32) and 2 buildings with 12 one-bedrooms private units 
(apartments) in each. This is preliminary but we are hoping for the first phase of 
construction to be awarded next summer and phase two being funded and awarded in 
fiscal year 2025. 

 
Jordon Pond Road (Keith Johnston) 
 

• Bridge Work 
 
For the last two-years we have been working with a team at Federal Highways to look at 
our major road interfaces and bridges that have state highways and park roads and 
looking at long-term strategies for these bridges. For long-term repairs on bridges, we 
need to open them up on the deck and take them down to the concrete arches and 
waterproof the drainage part of the arches. Over time, that water has been leeching down 
through roadways and through the concrete arch and getting into the steel infrastructure 
and causing cracking. Most of all experts we've worked with recommend that the right 



5 | P a g e

solution is to expose these bridges, waterproof, and get the drainage correct.  The first 
two bridges that we will work on is the bridge on Jordan Pond Road where the carriage 
road goes underneath, right before it runs into the Land and Garden Preserve land on 
Stanley Brook bridge.  That will close next spring.  The other bridge is the one at the Park 
Loop Road, one-way section.  There's a bridge that goes over an abandoned section of 
Carriage Road that used to go to the Dane Farm, which is Wildwood Stables.  We have 
not awarded the contract yet. But if successful, these bridges will be worked on from 
February until Memorial Day. They must have them open for traffic during the summer 
and then finish up anything in the fall after Labor Day.  So, for the four residences on the 
Jordan Pond Road north of the bridge, they can use Stanley Brook Road to access the 
residences. For everybody else, that would be closed during an interim time for doing the 
work.  So, the contract has not been awarded yet but our hopes are to get it done early 
and have the least impact to the public, as well.  
 
These bridge decks have not been opened since they were built.  We've tried other 
alternatives to prevent water from getting in but they're not as successful as doing this the 
right way, and probably the hard way, which is to open the bridge up and do the right 
treatment on them.  Those are the two bridges that we will tackle next year.  There's a lot 
of other bridges we have held off until we can learn how this will work and how we can 
refine our construction process.  Are there any questions? 

 
Construction/Maintenance Updates (Keith Johnston) 
 

• The other big jobs are the Great American Outdoor Act projects.  The one here on the 
Schoodic Institute campus is taking care of our water lines and sewer lines. The water 
supply for this peninsula is pumped and piped from all the way up the mountain and 
across the bay to this campus where it is treated for drinking water and that water line is 
not deep enough and subject to freeze in winter.  The goal of this project is to make it 
deep enough and insulated to keep it from freezing.  The sewer system is getting repaired 
and the water line replaced to help us reduce waste and to be better stewards of our water 
sources.   
 

• The other big project at headquarters is the construction of the maintenance facility.  It's 
making progress. The whole space is exposed and there is a lot of granite and they are 
working on ledge removal. If you swing by the campus, it's hard to miss the site.  It is 
moving along.  

 
Kevin Schneider - These are two high-priority projects and there are only two fiscal years 
left before this law expires - it is a crucial piece of legislation.  And another important 
piece of legislation is the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law.  That has funded some critical 
projects in the part that Rebecca Cole-Will will talk about.  Becky is the Chief of Natural 
and Cultural Resources. 

 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Updates– (Rebecca Cole-Will) 
 

• Last year I told you about the funding we received through the Bipartisan Infrastructure 
Law  (BIL) for ecosystem restoration for two ecosystems in the park, The Great Meadow 
and Bass Harbor Marsh.  

 



6 | P a g e

The bipartisan infrastructure will have funding capacity for long term to do ecosystem 
restoration.  We were successful in getting funding for two big important projects into the 
park.  One, The Great Meadow, is the largest freshwater wetlands in the park.  It is 
adjacent to the park and has been heavily impacted over the 100 years of the park and is 
in poor condition as far as a wetland is concerned.  The second project is Bass Harbor 
Marsh, which is the largest salt marsh in the park. Both have places where they are 
heavily inundated by invasive plants.  We have teams working to figure out how to 
remove all the Glossy Blackthorne and how to restore some natural plant functions and 
ecosystem work.  These are two big, ongoing projects.  A lot of work has been done over 
the summer.  And we went to touch on a couple of the highlights of what's been going on 
this summer.                       

 
The crews have made a lot of progress removing this Glossy Blackthorne and starting to 
restore some native plants. And we anticipate expanding that work over the winter and 
into next year and start working on some of the hydrology that's been disrupted for 
ditching and other things at Great Meadow and Bass Harbor Marsh.  There will be trail 
work done at Great Meadow, as well, and expanding the plants work.  We are bringing in 
more indigenous science into these projects going forward.  Our anticipated date of 
permanent design and installation of the culvert is next fall 2024. These will be at least 
three-year projects. Do you have any questions? 

 
 Resource Stewardship Strategy (Rebecca Cole-Will) 
 

• We have this Research Stewardship Strategy document, which is a planning tool used as 
an assessment to understand and identify key resources and stresses and threats to them.  
For example, forest pests are one of those threats and our forests are incredibly important 
and a fundamental resource to the park.  Some stresses in the threats are climate change is 
always one of the calculation pieces into this work and then, what are some of the things 
that we already know?  What are some of the strategies in the work that we need to do to 
address that priority resource?  We worked through this work and it’s not just our natural 
resources, air, water, forests, and zoology, but the intent was to be very interdisciplinary 
and integrate our national resources and cultural resources, as well, because Acadia is a 
big complex park and it is a heritage landscape and a cultural place for Wabanaki nations.  
There's a lot of history here.  Our visitor numbers and the way our visitors interact with 
our Park and our resources is a critical piece of this as well, understanding social science 
and understanding our visitors and how they interact with our resources.  We work 
through this with a lot of different partners, Wabanaki Scientists,  Preservation Officers, 
Schoodic Institute partners, Friends of Acadia, universities, and other academic partners 
and scholars as well, as well as our own staff to understand a long list of critical resources 
here.  With knowing that our resources and other resources are limited in terms of staff 
capacity and our funding, how do we really prioritize where we are going to plan and do 
our work in the next five to ten years.  This is a living document recognizing that things 
have changed a lot and that things will continue to change. 

  
 
Island Explorer Updates/Acadia Gateway Center (John Kelly) 

 
• I will give a summary about how Island Explorer is operating this year.  As of the end of 

August, a couple of weeks ago, we had 328,000 riders..  It's up from last year, 8% year to 
date.  We are still down from 2019 by 55%.  Because even though our visitation is down, 
ridership has gone up.   



7 | P a g e

 
The other news this year, due to continued struggles with hiring drivers it resulted last 
year in a change of schedules in the fall that had to basically be reprinted.  This year, 
Downeast Transportation got ahead of the game and purposely had the schedule go 
through most of August but with a newly printed schedule-initiated August 23rd.  The 
other new thing that is coming up this fall is the test pilot of electric buses.  We started 
out with potentially having six electric buses loaned to the Transportation Department.  
We are down to two.  They run for one week each starting September 17th through 
October 1st.  The idea is to analyze the capability and the functioning of buses on the 
route.  We will also be testing how it could serve Cadillac Mountain (terrain), even 
though Island Explorer does not serve Cadillac Mountain. Again, it will be two 
companies testing their buses.  It's not going to look anything like Island Explorer. It will 
be labeled differently and will be running on different routes for this service.  We are 
working with Downeast Transportation, but also, the National Renewal Energy Lab and 
the United States Department of Transportation.  It's a partnership which is also doing a 
pilot in the Grand Canyon.  We are the two parks this year where these groups are serving 
us to provide the pilot. 

                     
 
OLD BUSINESS 
   

• Status of Appointments  (Brandon Bies) 
 

Of the 16 positions on the Acadia National Park Advisory Commission, there are currently two 
members who are serving under appointments that are active and approved.  They are Bonnie 
Newsom, Member at Large, and Carl Brooks representing the Town of Cranberry Isles. Katherine 
Heidinger had been reappointed when she unfortunately passed a few months ago.  That position 
is vacant and we will need a nomination for a representative for the Town of Winter Harbor for us 
to send forward.  The remaining positions are not under active appointments. If you were on and 
were appointed at one time and it has expired, you can continue to serve until you are reappointed 
or somebody is appointed to replace you.  Meanwhile, we submitted a very large packet of 13 
positions of nominations up to the Department of the Interior on April 20th of this past year.  Of 
those 13 positions, it's important to know, that there are several of those who have more than one 
nominee.  There will only be one person selected by the Department, but there were multiple 
nominees for some of those 13.  We have heard that things are moving forward.  It just takes a 
long time.  It's time consuming but we have seen progress so I am hopeful that the next time 
I sit before you in February, we can start saying that some, or all, of those 13 positions have been 
filled.  I will leave it at that.  If you have any specific questions, reach out to me, or better yet to 
Kathy Flanders, who is our lifeline between Washington and the park keeping us posted on what 
is going on. 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

•  2024 Advisory Commission Meeting Dates (Brandon Bies) 
 

▪ February 5, 2024 – 1:00 pm, ANP Headquarters 
▪ June 03, 2024  - 1:00 pm, ANP Headquarters 
▪ September 09, 2024 – 1:00 pm, Schoodic Institute, Winter Harbor 

The meetings will be combination meetings, held in person and virtually. 



8 | P a g e

 
A motion was made by Kendall Davis to accept the 2024 Acadia National Park Advisory 
Commission meeting dates as stated. It was seconded by Fred Ehrlenbach, all accepted, 
no opposed.  

 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Science & Education Committee – Bruce Wiersma 
 
The S&E Committee meeting was held at Rockefeller Hall at Schoodic.   Members and ANP staff 
present are listed below.  Brandon Bies, ANP Deputy Superintendent gave us an overview of the 
S&E activities at ANP.   Rebecca Cole-Will gave us an overview of the Resource Stewardship 
Strategy program. She also passed out ANP’s Resource Stewardship Strategy Summary* which
contains details of the results of this significant planning effort.  We were introduced to Joy 
Absher who is the new head of education at the park and heard from Kate Petrie on the 
continuing middle school education program she manages.  Over 800 students were in the 
program in 2022.  Several of the Committee members had visited with Kate a few years back to 
get a firsthand look at this program.  A suggestion was made that we (S&E Committee members) 
get an updated tour.  I fully support this idea.  Abe Miller-Rushing presented an overview of ANP 
research activities.  He noted that The Science Symposium will be held at the Schoodic facility on 
October 18.  He also reported that the 2nd Century Stewardship Fellow program will be renewed, 
but with a new name, Acadia Science fellows. 
 
S&E Committee members present: 
Kendall Davis 
Steve Shea 
Carolyn Gothard 
Bruce Wiersma (Chair) 
Lee Worcester the Commission Chair also joined us. 
Acadia National Park Staff present: 
Rebecca Cole-Will 
Brandon Bies 
Abe Miller-Rushing 
Joy Absher 
Kate Petrie 

 
Park Use Committee – Jackie Johnston, Chair, The Park Use Committee did not meet but I am 
happy to be able to join you from Scotland.  
Lands Committee – No Report 
History Committee – No Report 

 
 
FRIENDS OF ACADIA –Eric Stiles, President and CEO 
 
We all take credit for each other's work which in some ways makes a great partnership but I will touch on 
some things briefly that you may have heard about or will be hearing about from my partner, Nick.  It's 
been a fun summer.  Friends of Acadia’s benefit raises dollars for immediate need for the park. They have 
two boats in operation for their holdings on over a dozen islands right now which aren’t equipped for the 
needs getting out, i.e., more crews, materials, and so forth.  Brandon, Kevin, and the team did a great job 
specking out a new boat. It's like floating a F350 pickup truck.  The bow drops, think about an ATV or 



9 | P a g e

wheelbarrow coming off the front. The benefit through the generous support of the community is 
allowing us to purchase that boat, which is under construction right now.  
 
I want to recognize Stephanie Clement, Vice President of Conservation, for Friends of Acadia.  Her team 
worked very closely with the men and women, people of the National Park; the Summit Stewards, 
Stewardship Crew, the Wild Garden’s Supervisory Gardner, and Recreation Technicians, who continue to 
work through the summer and at a reduced clip this fall. 
                      
Friends of Acadia also financially supported numerous programs including the Acadia Teacher Fellows 
program.  We have teachers from Maine, Maryland, Pennsylvania, Arizona, and New York. Concurrently 
we also have a cohort of teachers that meet on Thursdays throughout the school year.  This is really about 
how we bring the national park into the classroom and bring those classrooms back into our great national 
parks.  The Acadia Youth Conservation Corp is a cool program that has been beefed up the last couple of 
years.  They say that youth is wasted on young but there is no better back than an 18-year-old back but the 
National Park Service also uses this opportunity to expose them to a variety of professional careers within 
the National Park. And hearing directly from parents about that kind of workforce exposure and how that 
has helped elevate the sites.  There is nothing quite like trying to get your kid motivated for a great career 
in the future.   
 
We also help support six urban and diverse youth groups in their participation at the Acadia National 
Park.  You want to uplift local talent but you want to include others in America's greatest invention.  Nick 
will talk about the Schoodic Education Adventure, which we are pleased to be a partner in.  So, we 
continue to provide financial support for Wild Acadia. We are also continuing to fund the planning and 
design work needed to construct an accessible trail and sidewalk in the east and west parking lots of the 
summit of Cadillac.  We talk about diversity which includes accessibility as a significant portion.  If you 
think about the grant of the structure here at Acadia it's one of the greatest in the world.  We could create 
a high-quality experience who otherwise have barriers to these treasures.   
 
Coming this fall, come celebrate my birthday on November 4th and Take Pride in Acadia Day.  We 
usually get several hundred folks out contributing to helping to rake the leaves out of ditches and all sorts 
of things that are incredibly important to long-term.  I think having lived here a year just a sense of 
community pride and ability to give back to a park which means so much to all of us.   
 
A quick update on the Dane Farm project.  I want to thank Mr. Motenko who's been a key part of this 
conversation.  We talk about the Dane Farm which is 4.1 acres located at the northern end of Jordan Pond 
Road.  It is an inholding within the congressionally approved boundaries of Acadia National Park and up 
until Friday morning, was owned by the Rockefeller family.  We purchased and closed on that property 
Friday morning. We are excited for that.  And of the 4.1 acres, about one and a quarter acre is currently 
used as a public works yard by the Land and Garden Preserve. It is graded and cleared and the soil is 
compacted.  We will be looking at building a five-bedroom and a three-bedroom residential suite on that 
site which is allowed by zoning.  The remainder will be converted into a warm season meadow.  So, we 
are going to be giving back to the air, water, and the pollinators on the island and we are excited for that.  
We (Acadia National Park & Friends of Acadia) had a great community forum meeting on July 11th to 
share the concept plans with the community and about 50 folks attended. We heard from residents with 
three primary concerns about street safety regarding Jordan Pond Road, specifics on the site design, and  
potential expansion plans at that site. 
 
Again, Jordan Pond Road is a municipal road.  Any changes to traffic patterns, et cetera, is a municipal 
decision.  At the invitation of Jordan Pond Road residents that reached out to Mount Desert, Kevin 
Schneider, John Ipe form the Jordan Pond House, and I attended the meeting.   As part of that community 
conversation there was a number of things discussed.  Currently the Public Works Director and law 



10 | P a g e

enforcement are looking at some options for what might be done to make it a safer street and will be 
coming back to the select board at a fall meeting for those proposals.   
 
I can share that one of the residents was pleased that Mr. Ipe was able to talk to folks about commercial 
vehicles, whether its vans or trucks, moving off Jordan Pond Road, and there was a thank you e-mail from 
the individual that John recognized the efforts to move commercial vehicles off that street.  Okay, so we 
will be finalizing the design plans at the end of September and will be having a following community 
forum in person and hybrid to share the final plans with the community residents.  It's open to the public 
but our primary target is  the Seal Harbor village residents and business owners.  This is for follow-up 
conversation.   
 
We are reaching out to local construction firms and, if I win the lottery, we will have a groundbreaking 
this fall but that's a little ambitious.  If not we would assume that we would begin construction in the 
spring.  At the end, the land and improvements will be gifted to the national park.  It would be an asset of 
the taxpayers of this great nation.  FOA is not going to retain ownership. We don't feel that is our role.  
Are there any other questions? 
 
 
SCHOODIC INSTITUTE UPDATE – Nicholas Fisichelli, President & CEO 
 
I don't think it's too late to say welcome to Schoodic Institute, Acadia’s Research Learning Center 
campus.  This is one of 17 research learning centers across the national park system and the only one with 
the partner organization that is co-leading the science and co-leading the Research Learning Center.  And 
as Eric mentioned, the partnerships here are kind of what to make the magic really counts, I think, at our 
Research Learning Center.  Through our work as being a nimble Park partner, we are being able to more 
than triple the National Park Service investment in science and education.  So, through additional 
philanthropic support, as well as additional land funding, we are able to chip away. And really trying to 
build this thriving community of science here in Acadia.  

You've heard about some of those projects today, the big restoration projects on summit areas in the park.  
This summer, about 200 volunteers carried over 3,000 pounds of soil to the summits of Penobscot and 
Sargent Mountains.  This was part of the big restoration project and this was a big event with Friends of 
Acadia and others.  There are volunteers, ages were 5 to 80 years of age, carrying soil up to those 
summits.  Much gratitude to the community for trying to help us restore areas that have experience 150 
plus years of heavy human use.  Some of the other restoration projects are in Great Meadows, which is 
ongoing. And Bass Harbor Marsh, as well.  And there are lots of other projects every year.  There are at 
least 85-plus research projects happening in Acadia.  

In addition to being an amazing park, it's also a field station.  It's a place to understand our changing 
world.  One of our staff scientists, Anna Weber, a Marine Ecology Director, is right now at the 
Organizational Biological Field Station, which is an annual international conference is where field 
stations from all over come together to work on best practices for how we can better understand our 
changing world and respond to it.   

In the past, Abe and I had reported on the Second Century Stewardship Fellowship program.  I think I can 
call it a prestigious fellowship when we only select the brightest individuals for fellowships.   

There happens to be a member of the commission that is a former fellow.  Bonnie Newsom was a former 
fellow doing research here in the park. We are continuing that program and rebranding it, calling it the 
Acadia Science Fellowship.  We will have a new request for proposals that will come out this Friday, 
September 15th, and we will be supporting a couple new fellows in 2024 for that fellowship.  That is for 
original research which typically backs a student's postdoc early career faculty level, doing original 



11 | P a g e

research of the park that is focused on some of the park priority stewardship challenges. The Resource 
Stewardship Strategy that Rebecca mentioned earlier helps to direct what those priorities are.  I'm really 
excited to have that program continue.   

On the education side, today is the very first day of the Schoodic Education Adventure fall session.  We 
are really excited to have students, typically middle school students that come for 3-days, 2-nights, for an 
outdoor school program led by the National Park Service educators and the Institute, and of course 
Friends of Acadia who is the important partner holding that program as well.  We have 14 schools on the 
schedule for this fall, about 450 students or so.  So, lots of local schools from Sedgwick, Tremont, 
Hancock, Connors-Emerson School, Trenton, and Brooklyn.  Some local area schools and then some 
from further, Eastern, which is up in the county, and next week Caribou is coming and even the Freeport, 
Maine, school. We do draw from schools across the state for that program.  Last time we met, I 
mentioned the legislation to support outdoor school for all Maine students which did pass and is currently 
on the appropriations table so it is carried forward until January of 2024.  Hopefully, it will get funding 
and that is a statewide effort that every student in the state would have an opportunity to attend an outdoor 
school program such as the Schoodic Education Adventure here at Acadia.  

The Maine Public Broadcasting TV has a new program called ‘Borealis’ which premiers this Thursday 
and there is a ten-minute piece of that program.  The last thing, speaking of things to watch.  Tomorrow 
we have our evening lecture with Hawk Henries here in the auditorium across the hall.  He is an 
indigenous artist and musician.  He will be talking about music and the nature of reflection, which is part 
of our summer lecture series.  And that is it for me. Any questions?  Thank you. 

 
ADVISORY COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Carl Brooks:  I am new to the commission here, but as I see and I read the charters of various committees 
and our own charter, I think we should consider a long-term issue committee. I understand the federal 
hiring process. But the key personnel here do turn over here on a regular basis and there are some very 
long-term issues, let’s call them the nearer-term kinds of things.  We can comment on them here and we 
are quite aware of these problems and I think some of us should put these together and bring them out so 
you understand them. I'm not suggesting that that is a decision committee that decides a solution. Maybe 
we come up with 29 different solutions and just throw them at you.  But there are some real, long-term 
issues here that I think those of us that have been around a while we could well identify and could be a 
benefit to you.  What brings this to my attention today is, I just read the postmortem on Maui. I mean 
what happened in Maui was a change of culture and nobody paid attention to it until somebody threw a 
match into it and it burned the entire town.  This is sort of what happened, none of you were born before 
1947, I was.  I lived through 1947 and I know what happened before 1947.  There was a very similar 
culture change that had started already here.  It exacerbated the problem.  Is that culture change still going 
on and still being ignored?  Are we setting ourselves up for a 2047 that's worse than 1947?   

Then, I look at the transportation situation here on a short-term, politically popular basis. We are building 
this inter-modal terminal in Trenton, but is that really a solution to the problem?  I look at the other side 
of that and is that it's going to make that so much easier to get into the park that now it will become the 
popular entrance to the park. And is it going to drastically increase the number of people coming and the 
traffic?  If it is, then what are our options to do something?  We have an immediate issue.  Should we 
consider an alternate route which didn’t exist in the past?  The personnel at the park is on a relatively 
short-term basis. It seems to me that if we had a committee here there's a long-term issue committee that 
have a history around here and we know what's happened in the past, we could relate it to what’s going on 
now or into the future. It would give you a real heads-up on the underlying situations that we’re not 
identifying and talking about.  I throw that out for what it's worth and the suggestion that maybe we 
should try to do something along that line. Thank you. 



12 | P a g e

Kendall Davis: Okay, but I worry about here is that I am not against what you suggested here.  I am 
against redundancy.  Redundancy creates a quagmire.  We get bogged down with the committees that 
already exist and if the issues cannot find a place in those committees, I could see doing this.  But I am 
concerned that we would go ahead and form yet another committee when committees are hard to get 
people to participate in as now.  There is an issue with that. 

Carl Brooks: I have been on enough Federal Advisory Boards long enough to understand what you're 
saying and absolutely don't disagree.  Thinking about this I looked at the charters of our existing 
committees and as I see our activity in our existing committees, I see it it's to look at the near-term kinds 
of things the park is doing and proposing to do and provides a combination of input from the local 
communities that's appropriate. This kind of committee, the number one job is to put holy water on what 
the park wants to do.  Our means of operation is that we can flavor that holy water one way or another 
based on things that impact us.   

I absolutely agree.  If we could find a home for that on one of these committees, let's do it.  But when I 
read the charters of these committees, it does not seem to me that they have a flavor looking at the 
hundred years past and hundred-year future.  If we could find a way to stick it into one of the existing 
committees effectively, I don't disagree. 

Kevin Schneider, Superintendent: I know that the transportation plan has been a big subject of the park 
use committee that Jackie has chaired.  And Jackie you could speak to that. That certainly could nest, and 
has nested, in the park use committee.  The questions around fire management are good ones and that 
could potentially be nested to the science education committee to the extent that were looking at forest 
ecology and the science of these forests and those would be appropriate topics I think for those 
committees to concern.  I think what you’re suggesting is to back up and look at the bigger picture to 
which could be something that the committee chairs try to do as well, and then bring it back to the 
commission. 

Carl Brooks: There's individual issues that we might have identified that might fit a particular 
committee.  But I'm thinking there is a whole wide class of things going on that you don't see an 
applicable committee.  I think that committees may be more coming up with a solution rather than 
identifying the issues.  What I'm talking about is getting the issues out there so, as people cycle through 
the park personnel system, it could be brought on board.  You have issues here that we should recognize 
exist.  And then they would probably call for some kind of decision-making but it's not my purpose here 
to make a committee for an organization that is going to give us solutions.  The committee could suggest 
alternatives.  Historically we had a parallel path to MDI.  Clearly, that is a problem not being solved by 
this inter-modal facility, like a traffic jam on a two-lane bridge across from Trenton.  Clearly we need to 
think outside of the box.  You have an unfortunate problem. And when I read the post forums, there was a 
great parallelism between there and what happened here in 1947 and I have raised the question, are we 
continuing that same cultural process that led to that destruction?  That led to the exacerbation of 47 here.  
That's on the fire management side.  There was an article a couple weeks ago in the FT. They parsed the 
likely destructive dangers of different parts of climate change and wildfire was number three on the list.  
Raising sea levels is number five on the list.  And as I say, another issue is, historically, the flux that has 
happened from the days when horseless carriages were band on MDI and we had parallel rail service. Are 
the issues that we have a facility with traffic jams happening. Is that really going to deal with the issues or 
are the issues more fundamental here?  And we need to get those issues up in front of us.   

Fred Ehrlenbach: From my perspective, that goes beyond the Acadia National Park Advisory 
Commission on park.  That is an island-wide issue and a regional issue that eventually will be addressed 
by somebody, I don't know who it's going to be. As a representative from Trenton, I can tell you that only 
one end of the bridge in in Acadia National Park and that is on Thompson Island and the other end is in 
Trenton and its two lanes. The train service was combined with the ferry service from Hancock Point. 



13 | P a g e

The train went to Hancock Point and the ferry went to Bar Harbor.  This has been discussed through 
Maine Emergency Management and Maine Emergency Agency-Hancock County; about how to respond 
to an incident at Acadia National Park.  How would they evacuate.  That is an issue.  I agree with what 
you're saying but I don't think it's within the purvey of this commission.  It has to be addressed regionally 
somehow, not by the park or this commission. 

Carl Brooks: I absolutely agree.  There's no question.  As you say, it’s going to take a joint effort of all 
the towns and the park, MDI, and Trenton and so forth.   

Ben Worcester, Chair: We don't have to try to reconstruct the past, we need to look to the future.  I think 
your topics are fine. I do think they are ones that should be looked at. I think the basic committee 
structure that we have presently is probably adequate.  They're just not all going to go into the same 
committee.  Transportation may go into one.  And fire into another. I do think that they are worth looking 
at. I think they probably should be, and maybe there already is a concern to say we could we have the 
redoing of the 1947 fire.  There's a lot of fuel out there and, if the right conditions come along, it's not too 
far from anybody's imagination what could happen.  Transportation could go to another committee.  I 
must say that our purpose in here is to advise the Secretary of the Interior.  We're not here to quote, in the 
real sense, to do anything.  We are here to monitor the activities within Acadia National Park. 

Howie Motenko: This is Howie.  I just wanted to add one other thing that I think this commission also 
serves a purpose for the community forum to let the public to engage with the park and we are a vehicle 
for that so I want that to be equally as clear. 

   ************************************************ 

Matt Horton: My problem is very simple and it is a question.  I have noticed along the bluffs in Bar 
Harbor, the encroachment, and the growth of the black locust trees along the guard rail and it's kind of 
obscured the vista.  I have had a few people talk to me about that and I know this is park lands and I'm 
wondering if something can be done about that?  Can we have the smaller trees thinned out before they 
can become bigger trees and completely obscure the Vista.   

And you should be aware that the same trees I'm talking about are starting to obscure the Acadia National 
Park sign that is down by the yacht club.  It's kind of a mess.  They are hanging over the guard rails and 
what was a nice vista two or three-years ago has kind of been taken over.  That's my question, I don't 
expect you to have an instant answer but I thought it should be brought to the committee's attention and to 
the staff of Acadia National Park. 

Kevin Schneider, Superintendent: We have been a little behind on our Vista maintenance.  That Vista 
historically was cleared by the town of Bar Harbor. 

John Kelly: It had been probably ten-years ago but we intervened to say the town could not cut trees on 
park property.  So, we sort of pushed the town back with that. 

Kevin Schneider, Superintendent: We can take it up with the town potentially. 

Keith Johnston: We have been in a recent conversation with Becky about the species and how it might 
be managed in the future.  Because it's becoming a concern for a lot of folks and it has come up several 
times recently.  There is opportunity for conversation about how we incorporate that vegetation 
management into the bigger picture. 

   ******************************************** 



14 | P a g e

Kendall Davis: I had a conversation with Brandon Bies earlier as the Science Committee meeting 
regarding the trails and the difficulty of trails at Acadia National Park.  I had it brought to me by one 
community member that said it would be nice to have something at the very beginning of the trail when 
you are up there in years to be notified if you’re going to run into a level four- level five difficulty and not 
a ladder facing you with you looking up.  And Brandon reassured me that is something that you are 
working on. 

Brandon Bies: As I understand it, Jay Elhard, our Information Specialist, is working on a pilot.  I think 
the Tarn is where we were thinking about doing. It would give you notice of the topography of what the 
trail would look like. 

   ******************************************** 

Jackie Johnston: I neglected to jump in when I should have at the end of the Superintendent reports.  I 
wanted to go on record now.  In hearing Keith Johnston's summary of all the work that has gone on and 
all the projects that will be going on, having been part of that process on the Navy side years ago, I fully 
appreciate the effort that has been made and what has been accomplished between the congressional 
delegation advocating for funds in various forms to flow through to the national parks.  And this team 
sitting in this room, as well as the Friends of Acadia.   

But the team sitting in your room right now putting together projects, planning them, and evaluating them 
from a cultural and historical resources perspective, and executing the acquisition process to get these 
projects out, it's amazing that they have kept up with these opportunities with  the various funding flow to 
do what the park needs the most in certain areas.  I just wanted to be on record to say kudos to this entire 
team on what they have accomplished so far and what they continue to do on the project site.  Thank you. 

Any other questions or comments from the commission?   
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Steve Smith, Otter Creek: I find it ironic that we are talking about invasive species today, which is a 
topic I am bringing here.  And I did not make enough copies but I am here about  a different type of 
invasive species.  *Mr. Smith distributed a handout. 
 
   ********************************************* 
 
George Davis, Otter Creek: It's been about three and a half years since I spoke to this group but I'm sad 
that I have to do it again.  My name is George Davis and I am from the Village of Otter Creek, the town 
of Mount Dessert.   

I went over to the Rockefeller Gatehouse yesterday and what I complained about three and a half years 
ago is that a little bit of work has been done on the woodwork on the outside.  But it's 88-years old and 
needs to be done soon.  I think someone, one person with a paintbrush could put a clearcoat on that 
woodwork out there and it would probably last another 88-years because most of it as recessed back in the 
wall.  If it wasn’t for that, it would be all gone.   But it really needs attention Mr. Superintendent. 

Kevin Schneider, Superintendent: There has been some work done. Were you at Brown Mountain or 
Jordan Pond Gatehouse?  There has been some work done on the gatehouses and there's work happening 
right now on the piers at Jordan Pond Gatehouse, which are the historic, masonry peers when you cross 
onto the carriage road.  There's a lot of work done on the Jordan Pond Gatehouse in the last couple of 
years and Keith can talk more about that in specifics.  But if you're looking at Brown Mountain, Keith? 



15 | P a g e

Keith Johnston: Preservation work is being done, following the preservation status set up by the 
Secretary of the Interior.  I assure you we are doing our best with those assets in the manner in which they 
were built. 

George Davis: I believe one person with a paintbrush could really make a dent.  I mean it.  Thank you. 

   ***************************************** 

David Carre, Gouldsboro: In the spirit of staying in the community for a moment to make a short 
comment. I wanted to point out a conflict, and I don't know the solution.  I have noticed that Acadia 
National Park has posted on social media about the night sky visibility in this area.  I very excitedly 
looked for Charles Sumner High School to come online which it has and it is admitting the campus is 
admitting a tremendous amount of light, it seems to me in conflict with the night sky experience in this 
area.  Maybe there's an opportunity for some sort of conversation between the Park Service and RSU 24.  
Particularly, if the park is going to run a night sky event in September.  I would suggest that maybe 
something be done to dim it down for such an event. Thank you. 

 
Any other questions or comments from the public? 
 
 
CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
The Commission Vice Chair made closing comments. With no further comments, I move we make a 
motion to adjourn. Fred Ehrlenbach  made a motion to adjourn. Kendall Davis seconded. All agree – no 
oppose. Motion carries.   
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, February 05th, 2024, 1:00 p.m. at Acadia National Park 
headquarters in Bar Harbor. It will continue to be an in-person and virtual meeting as published in the 
FEDERAL REGISTER.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 2:50 pm 
Minutes Submitted by Kathy Flanders 





 

NEW BUSINESS 

  









Date: February 1, 2024 

To: Selectboard 

From: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 

Re: Northeast Harbor Village Center Improvements Contract 

The Northeast Harbor Village Center Improvement project (Project) has additional work that needs to be 

completed so that the Project adequately meets the design specifications. Due to the length of time of 

the Project as well as additional Construction Contract Administration and Inspection services (CCA-I), 

the original contract amount with Haley Ward is insufficient to complete the Project and Public Works is 

requesting a contract increase in the amount of $79,290.91. 

Final paving was generally completed in early 2023. The paving process for the Project is somewhat 

complex given the number of drainage structures, driveway aprons, and flat topography. It is my 

estimation that the current surface does not adequately conform to design specifications which is 

supported by the direct evidence of water ponding in some areas, draining slowly from others, and flow 

missing some catch basins. Preliminary survey by Haley Ward of the final paving also indicates the 

surface does not meet the design specifications. Given the extent of the improper drainage, I believe it is 

best to adjust catch basins and repave portions of Main Street. Leaving Main Street in its current form 

would increase the rate of deterioration of the road surface and will create unnecessary wet and icy 

conditions. In order complete the proposed repaving, the Town will require further services from Haley 

Ward including surveying, design/grading, project management, and the development of Record 

Drawings. Included with this memorandum is a breakdown of already incurred from work by Haley Ward 

beyond what was covered in the existing contract and also further Project costs anticipated to bring the 

Project through completion. 

Public Works recommends a revision to the contract with Haley Ward for CCA-I in the amount not to 
exceed $79,290.91 with funding to come from account 3000039-57712 with a current unencumbered 
balance of $483,349.29. 

Cc: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

Mae Wyler, Finance Director 

Claire Wolfolk, Town Clerk 

Enclosures: Contract Revision Cost Estimate 

Memorandum



Noyes Becker Drake Becker/TBD Bailey

ENGINEERING SERVICES PIC SPE PE RPR DES Exp/Subs ($)
 Total Cost 
of Phase 

205.00$ 175.00$ 140.00$ 125.00$     145.00$ 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION/SURVEY 16 31 73 0 24 15,000.00$    37,405.00$  

Survey (completed Fall 2023)) 4,800.00$      4,800.00$    
Virtual Progress Meetings (2) 3 6 1,365.00$    
In-Person Meeting (1) 4 4 100.00$         1,480.00$    
Design/Grading 28 4 24 8,940.00$    
Negotiations/Coordination with Contractor 12 28 6,380.00$    
Virtual Start-up Meeting (1) 3 420.00$       
Weekly Coordination - 3 weeks @ 4hrs/wk 12 1,680.00$    
Project Management - 3 weeks @ 2hrs/wk 6 840.00$       
Review Final Pay Request (1 req @ 2hrs/req) 2 280.00$       
Final Completion Inspection and Follow-up 8 100.00$         1,220.00$    
Survey (Record Drawings) 10,000.00$    10,000.00$  

CONSTRUCTION MONITORING 0 0 0 100 0 1,000.00$      13,500.00$  
Provide RPR 10 days @ 10 hrs/day 100 1,000.00$      13,500.00$  

 $ 50,905.00 
 $ 28,385.91 

79,290.91$ 

LEGEND
PIC = Principal-in Charge
SPE = Senior Project Engineer
PE = Project Engineer
DES = Designer
RPR = Resident Project Representative
CLER = Clerical
SURVEY = 2 man crew

2023 CA/CI Overages
Total Estimated Fee for Construction Services

NEH MAIN STREET 
Revised 1.11.2024

Estimated Fee for Spring Construction Services



 

Town of Mount Desert 
Michael Bender, Fire Chief 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone 207-276-5111  Fax 207-276-5732 
Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

firechief@mtdesert.org 
  

Memo 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager  
From: Mike Bender, Fire Chief 
CC:  
Date: January 31, 2024 
Re: Request Authorization for Watercraft Purchase using CIP Funds 

 

I would like to request from the Board of Selectman approval to release an amount of 
$113,114.00 from account #4040300-24471(Fire Department Equipment Reserve), and 
authorization to use such funds for the purpose of purchasing a new 2024 21-foot rigid 
inflatable boat with outboard motor from Ribcraft USA. This boat is intended to replace the fire 
department’s current 12-foot Logic boat with motor, acquired in 2001. The current 
unincumbered balance of the CIP is approximately $436,354.92. 

The 12-foot Logic was purchased by the Somesville Fire Company with what I am told was a 
dual use purpose. One was to be used as a shuttle to ferry resources to those houses and 
camps along the Long Pond shoreline that may be inaccessible by fire truck, or maybe 
ambulance. The other was to be used as a rescue or floatation device during an ice rescue, 
with the idea of dragging the boat across the ice with would be rescuers. For the past 20+ 
years, I have never seen this boat deployed in an ice recuse situation. And, although we have 
used it for transporting personnel and equipment in the past, the small size severally limits its 
usefulness in these types of scenarios.  In fact, a majority of our responses using watercraft 
have been in open water rescue, mostly on Long Pond, although it has seen some use in the 
marine environment as well. The existing12-foot Logic restricts our rescue abilities to one 
victim retrieval at a time with no room for patient care once onboard. It also does not handle 
rough weather conditions well, sometimes placing our first responders in hazardous 
conditions.  

Back in 2020 we developed operational requirements for a rescue boat that would meet our 
mission needs, which I have provided for review. At the time, I tasked two of our more 
experienced mariners to develop a set of boat specifications centered on these requirements. 
We then reached out to Ribcraft USA from Marblehead Massachusetts to provide a quote 
based on our specs. Then everything was put on hold due to other pressing events taking 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org


2 
 

place like COVID-19, MDFD taking over EMS responsibility for the town, renovating or 
constructed two fire stations, hiring 12 new staff over the last 19 months, designing, and 
ordering a new fire truck and ambulance, etc. We are just now getting back to reviewing, 
revising, and finalizing the specs to bring this before the Select Board.  

Ribcraft USA is our vendor of choice for this type of watercraft due to their proximity to MDI, 
their experienced in constructing public safety rescue boats, the type of boat they offer and, 
more importantly, our familiarity with rigid inflatable boats. In the past few years, we have 
hosted two Public Safety Rescue Boat Operations training classes instructed by Ocean 
Rescue Systems International out of Portland Maine where our staff operated the same 
brand and type of watercraft we are requesting to purchase. These boats can easily handle 
rough sea or lake conditions, have excellent stability, buoyancy and maneuverability with low 
inflatable side tubes meaning victim retrieval is less challenging for rescuers. With the 
increase in length and specifically design forward mounted operator’s console, a stokes 
basket can be placed on the floor of the boat for patient stabilization and care. It can transport 
a larger payload in less time when used for shuttling, which results in a speeder and safer 
emergency response.    

I anticipate this rescue boat will be housed at the Somesville station as most requests for a 
water rescue originate at Long Pond. Although, it may be relocated to the Northeast Harbor 
station from time to time. CIP replacement cycle would be at 18 years and plans are to place 
the current FD boat for sale by bid.   

 

      Thank you.   



Mount Desert Fire Department New Rescue Boat Purchase - 
Operational Requirements and Mission Focus 

 

The Town of Mount Desert is accepting sealed bids to supply one (1) factory new fire rescue boat with 
outboard motor(s) and transport trailer to operate in both coastal and off-shore marine environments 
as well as fresh open body water areas within our jurisdiction. The department’s response area covers 
40 miles of coastal shoreline, plus several small to medium sized lakes and ponds with numerous 
shoreline properties. Included in the department’s response area are multiple harbors and one marina. 
Each harbor facility accommodates both commercial and recreational boats of various sizes year round.  
Extreme weather routinely creates National Weather Service Small Craft Advisories conditions and the 
wave heights are similar to those that can be found along coastal New England. The proposed vessel 
must be able to provide a rapid response capability with a minimum wave, combined with a safe and 
stable work platform with a full load of crew and equipment.   

 

The following are the minimum requirements for a fire department rescue boat. The primary mission of 
the boat will be open water rescue and support for EMS responses. The boat will be expected to 
perform in both coastal and off-shore marine environments as well as fresh open body water areas. The 
boat will be expected to perform safely in both daytime and nighttime operations, and in various 
weather conditions typically found in coastal Maine.   

 

The specifications shall include an open or enclosed cabin design with a minimum 6 man capacity plus 
equipment to include but not limited to SCBA, hose, nozzles, backboard/stokes basket, PPE, etc. The 
vessel will be fitted for positive floatation for a full load or crew and equipment plus a safety factor of 10 
percent. Deck configuration shall be designed to accommodate the securing and transportation of a 
minimum of 1 EMS patient in the departments stokes basket. Some type of sheltering system for EMS 
patients would be preferable.  

 

The Hull Type will be a Modified V configuration or equivalent. The Overall Hull Length will be 19’ 0”- 21’ 
0”, the Beam will be minimum 8’ 0”, and the Draft will be 16” maximum. It must come equipped with 
either Single or Twin Outboard engines, four stroke and a 150 HP minimum.  

 

All items, as specified, are to be delivered to a location within the Town of Mount Desert as the Town 
may specify at the time of delivery. The cost of delivery must be contained within your proposal pricing.  





AC
CO

U
N

T
AC

CO
U

N
T 

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
O

RI
G

IN
AL

 A
PP

RO
P

RE
VI

SE
D

 B
U

D
G

ET
YT

D
 R

EC
O

G
N

IZ
ED

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 A

PP
RO

P
RE

VI
SE

D
 B

U
D

G
ET

YT
D

 R
EC

O
G

N
IZ

ED
O

RI
G

IN
AL

 A
PP

RO
P

RE
VI

SE
D

 B
U

D
G

ET
YT

D
 R

EC
O

G
N

IZ
ED

RE
Q

U
ES

T
RE

PO
RT

ER
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
00

00
Ta

x 
Re

ve
nu

e
0

17
,2

49
,1

44
17

,2
27

,5
99

0
18

,8
76

,9
29

18
,8

76
,9

29
0

20
,6

47
,7

63
20

,6
47

,7
63

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

00
10

In
 L

ie
u 

of
 T

ax
es

-M
ap

le
 L

an
e 

Ap
4,

50
0

4,
50

0
3,

96
9

4,
50

0
4,

50
0

4,
62

7
4,

50
0

4,
50

0
0

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

AS
SE

SS
O

R
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
00

11
In

 L
ie

u 
of

 T
ax

es
-A

ca
di

a 
N

at
l P

30
,0

00
30

,0
00

32
,3

44
30

,0
00

30
,0

00
34

,5
39

30
,0

00
30

,0
00

0
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

AS
SE

SS
O

R
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
00

12
In

 L
ie

u 
of

 T
ax

es
-O

th
er

2,
50

0
2,

50
0

2,
07

5
2,

00
0

2,
00

0
2,

07
5

2,
00

0
2,

00
0

5,
07

3
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
AS

SE
SS

O
R

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

00
13

-
In

 L
ie

u 
of

 T
ax

es
-L

an
d 

&
 G

ar
de

n 
Pr

es
er

ve
19

,0
00

19
,0

00
19

,5
52

19
,0

00
19

,0
00

21
,3

12
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
23

,5
15

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
AS

SE
SS

O
R

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

02
22

St
at

e 
Re

ve
nu

e-
Re

ve
nu

e 
Sh

ar
in

g
70

,0
00

70
,0

00
70

,0
00

10
0,

00
0

10
0,

00
0

10
0,

00
0

12
0,

00
0

12
0,

00
0

60
,9

82
16

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

AS
SE

SS
O

R
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
02

30
St

at
e 

Re
ve

nu
e-

Ho
m

es
te

ad
  R

ei
m

b
70

,0
00

70
,0

00
75

,0
24

70
,0

00
70

,0
00

84
,2

10
65

,0
00

65
,0

00
63

,4
72

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
AS

SE
SS

O
R

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

02
32

St
at

e 
Re

ve
nu

e-
Ve

te
ra

n 
Ex

 R
ei

m
b

70
0

70
0

57
2

60
0

60
0

56
3

50
0

50
0

0
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

AS
SE

SS
O

R
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
02

33
St

at
e 

Re
ve

nu
e-

Tr
ee

 G
ro

w
th

 R
ei

m
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

59
1

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

71
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
99

7
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
AS

SE
SS

O
R

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

02
34

St
at

e 
Re

ve
nu

e-
BE

TE
 R

ei
m

b
3,

20
0

3,
20

0
2,

53
1

2,
50

0
2,

50
0

2,
46

5
2,

00
0

2,
00

0
0

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
AS

SE
SS

O
R

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

01
10

-
Bu

ild
in

g 
Pe

rm
its

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

30
,0

28
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
19

,2
89

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

17
,1

68
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

CE
O

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

01
14

-
Pl

um
bi

ng
 P

er
m

its
8,

00
0

8,
00

0
16

,1
90

7,
00

0
7,

00
0

13
,9

23
14

,0
00

14
,0

00
9,

37
5

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
CE

O
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
01

16
-

Se
w

er
 P

er
m

its
9,

00
0

9,
00

0
8,

14
4

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

9,
68

0
8,

00
0

8,
00

0
9,

00
0

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

CE
O

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

01
18

-
Co

nd
iti

on
al

 U
se

 P
er

m
its

25
0

25
0

40
0

15
0

15
0

45
0

40
0

40
0

15
0

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

CE
O

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

01
19

-
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n 
Pe

rm
its

30
0

30
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

75
0

0
0

0
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
CE

O
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
02

28
-

St
at

e 
Re

ve
nu

e-
G

en
 A

ss
is

t R
ei

m
b

3,
50

0
3,

50
0

41
6

3,
50

0
3,

50
0

0
3,

50
0

3,
50

0
0

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
A 

AD
M

IN
10

0-
40

-4
01

-4
10

-0
00

-4
03

09
Po

lic
e 

Ti
ck

et
 F

ee
s

50
0

50
0

1,
00

5
75

0
75

0
94

6
75

0
75

0
-9

48
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
PD

10
0-

40
-4

01
-4

10
-0

00
-4

03
60

Po
lic

e 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Fe

es
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
0

60
,0

00
60

,0
00

0
60

,0
00

60
,0

00
47

,2
71

67
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
PD

10
0-

40
-4

01
-4

10
-0

00
-4

20
00

-
BH

 C
on

tr
ac

te
d 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
ev

 P
D

0
0

0
10

9,
98

7
10

9,
98

7
11

2,
57

2
16

6,
63

3
16

6,
63

3
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
PD

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

02
27

St
at

e 
Re

ve
nu

e+
Ro

ad
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e
35

,0
00

35
,0

00
37

,8
40

35
,0

00
35

,0
00

37
,6

36
35

,0
00

35
,0

00
0

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
PW

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

04
16

-
So

lid
 W

as
te

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
co

m
e

6,
00

0
6,

00
0

10
,3

98
15

,0
00

15
,0

00
10

,2
87

0
0

0
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

PW
10

0-
50

-5
01

-0
00

-0
00

-4
01

65
Ro

ad
 O

pe
ni

ng
 P

er
m

it 
Fe

es
8,

50
0

8,
50

0
2,

64
5

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

4,
96

6
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
1,

28
7

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

PW
10

0-
50

-5
05

-5
55

-0
00

-4
03

20
Se

w
er

ag
e 

Ch
ar

ge
s

70
0

70
0

1,
44

5
70

0
70

0
77

5
70

0
70

0
0

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

PW
10

0-
50

-5
30

-0
00

-0
00

-4
03

27
-

SV
-E

VS
E 

Re
ve

nu
e

30
0

30
0

1,
36

7
71

0
71

0
1,

17
5

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
20

1
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
PW

10
0-

50
-5

15
-0

00
-0

00
-4

04
15

Re
cy

cl
in

g 
In

co
m

e
0

0
1,

33
2

0
0

28
3

0
0

37
1

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
PW

10
0-

41
-4

10
-4

40
-0

00
-4

10
00

-
EM

S 
Re

ve
nu

e
0

0
6,

62
7

87
,0

00
87

,0
00

15
9,

50
3

12
3,

40
4

12
3,

40
4

35
,7

44
12

3,
40

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

EM
S 

Co
rd

in
at

or
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
00

30
Pe

na
lty

/I
nt

er
es

t o
n 

De
lin

q 
Ta

x
30

,0
00

30
,0

00
32

,9
54

30
,0

00
30

,0
00

19
,8

21
30

,0
00

30
,0

00
7,

28
1

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
TA

X 
CO

LL
EC

TO
R

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

00
20

-
M

ot
or

 V
eh

ic
le

 E
xc

is
e 

Ta
x

62
0,

00
0

62
0,

00
0

66
4,

58
7

65
0,

00
0

65
0,

00
0

65
9,

44
4

66
0,

00
0

66
0,

00
0

33
2,

67
0

66
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
TO

W
N

 C
LE

RK
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
00

21
-

Bo
at

 E
xc

is
e 

Ta
x

18
,0

00
18

,0
00

19
,4

58
18

,0
00

18
,0

00
17

,9
36

18
,0

00
18

,0
00

4,
51

4
18

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

TO
W

N
 C

LE
RK

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

00
22

-
Do

cu
m

en
te

d 
Bo

at
 E

xc
is

e 
Ta

x
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
11

,4
13

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

8,
61

9
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
1,

10
2

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
TO

W
N

 C
LE

RK
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
01

30
-

An
im

al
 L

ic
en

se
s -

 A
ge

nt
 F

ee
s

25
0

25
0

27
8

30
0

30
0

28
4

25
0

25
0

11
0

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

TO
W

N
 C

LE
RK

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

01
50

-
IF

W
 M

os
es

 F
ee

s
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
89

1
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
85

1
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
28

0
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
TO

W
N

 C
LE

RK
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
01

60
-

M
ot

or
 V

eh
ic

le
 F

ee
s

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

13
,3

46
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
12

,9
46

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

6,
22

1
13

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

TO
W

N
 C

LE
RK

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

01
62

-
Sn

ow
m

ob
ile

 F
ee

s
15

0
15

0
50

15
0

15
0

38
15

0
15

0
52

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

TO
W

N
 C

LE
RK

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

03
30

-
Vi

ta
l S

ta
tis

tic
 F

ee
s

3,
00

0
3,

00
0

2,
64

5
3,

00
0

3,
00

0
3,

00
8

3,
00

0
3,

00
0

1,
65

8
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
TO

W
N

 C
LE

RK
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
03

25
-

AN
P 

O
tt

er
 C

re
ek

 S
ew

er
 F

ee
s

60
,0

00
60

,0
00

56
,8

21
60

,0
00

60
,0

00
62

,5
03

60
,0

00
60

,0
00

0
62

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

TO
W

N
 M

G
R

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

03
26

-
AN

P 
Se

al
 H

ar
bo

r S
ew

er
 F

ee
s

15
,0

00
15

,0
00

17
,9

43
15

,0
00

15
,0

00
19

,7
38

15
,0

00
15

,0
00

0
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

TO
W

N
 M

G
R

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

04
40

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Cl

ai
m

s I
nc

om
e

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

14
,4

86
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
5,

99
1

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

0
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
TO

W
N

 M
G

R
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
05

00
-

IN
TE

RF
U

N
D 

TR
AN

SF
ER

 (M
AR

IN
A)

53
,2

03
53

,2
03

52
,6

05
64

,1
50

74
,6

50
10

,5
00

74
,2

70
74

,2
70

0
82

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

TO
W

N
 M

G
R

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

03
02

Pr
in

tin
g 

Fe
es

50
0

50
0

36
2

50
0

50
0

18
1

10
0

10
0

17
1

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

TR
EA

S
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
04

09
In

te
re

st
 In

co
m

e+
G

F 
Ac

co
un

ts
15

,8
90

15
,8

90
41

,5
69

25
,0

00
25

,0
00

23
3,

81
4

35
0,

00
0

35
0,

00
0

10
6,

88
8

37
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
TR

EA
S

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

04
10

In
ve

st
m

en
t E

ar
ni

ng
s

60
,0

00
60

,0
00

37
,5

92
30

,0
00

30
,0

00
46

,2
98

50
,0

00
50

,0
00

13
,4

48
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

TR
EA

S
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-1
32

13
St

at
e 

Re
ve

nu
e 

Sh
ar

in
g 

Pr
ev

io
us

 P
os

iti
ve

 V
ar

ia
nc

e 
U

se
20

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

TR
EA

S
10

0-
00

-0
00

-0
00

-0
00

-4
05

30
-

TR
AN

SF
ER

 F
RO

M
 C

AP
IT

AL
 G

AI
N

S
0

0
0

30
0,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

0
0

10
0,

00
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
TR

EA
S

10
0-

00
-0

00
-0

00
-0

00
-4

05
26

-
TR

AN
SF

ER
 F

RO
M

 S
U

RP
LU

S 
(W

 C
/O

)
50

0,
00

0
50

0,
00

0
50

0,
00

0
70

0,
00

0
70

0,
00

0
70

0,
00

0
75

0,
00

0
75

0,
00

0
75

0,
00

0
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

TR
EA

S
To

ta
l 1

00
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

1,
73

9,
94

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
,9

89
,0

87
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
,0

20
,2

44
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
49

6,
64

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
21

,3
84

,0
76

$ 
   

   
   

 
21

,6
01

,6
36

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

71
5,

15
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

23
,3

62
,9

20
$ 

   
   

   
 

22
,2

47
,8

15
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
61

1,
65

4
$ 

   
   

   

20
24

-2
02

5
20

22
-2

02
3 

(u
na

ud
ite

d 
as

 o
f 1

2/
27

/2
3)

20
21

-2
02

2 
(a

ud
ite

d)
20

23
-2

02
4 

(u
na

ud
ite

d 
as

 o
f 1

2/
27

/2
3)



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 

Town of Mount Desert 

Annual Town Meeting Warrant 
Fiscal Year 2025 

As presented at the  
Annual Town Meeting 

May 6 & 7, 2024 

Secret Ballot (Candidate) Election 
May 6, 2024 8 a.m. – 8 p.m. 
Town Office Meeting Room 

Open Floor Town Meeting 
May 7, 2024 

6 p.m. 
Kelley Auditorium, Mt. Desert Elementary School 

(Gymnasium) 

Note:  The warrant included with the Annual Report is a 
DRAFT warrant; check the POSTED warrant for final wording. 

BLACK – voted or Non-BOS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 3 

Greeting 
 

State of Maine 
Hancock County, ss         2024 
 

To: David Kerns, a Constable in the Town of Mount Desert 
 
In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the 
Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert, qualified by law to vote in Town affairs, to 
assemble in the Town Hall Meeting Room, 21 Sea St. Northeast Harbor, Maine, on 
Monday, the sixth day of May AD 2024 at seven-fifty o’clock in the forenoon, then and 
there to act on Article 1; and immediately thereafter to act on Article 2 until eight o’clock in 
the evening. 
AND to notify and warn said voters to reconvene in the Kelley Auditorium, Mt. Desert 
Elementary School, 8 Joy Rd, Northeast Harbor, Maine, in said Town, on Tuesday, the 
seventh day of May AD 2024 at six o’clock in the evening; then and there to act on 
Articles 3 through xx; all of said Articles being set out below to wit: 
 
Pursuant to Title 21-A, §759(7), absentee ballots will be processed at the polls on May 
6, 2024 every half hour beginning at 9:00 AM. 
 
 

Election of Moderator 

 To elect a Moderator by written ballot. 
 
 

Election of Municipal Officers 

 To elect one member to the Selectboard for a term of three 
years, two members to the Mount Desert Elementary School Board for a term of three years, 
and one trustee to the Mount Desert Island Regional School District for a term of three 
years. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

Non-Voter Recognition 

 To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to 
speak during the2024 Annual Town Meeting. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 

Claire Woolfolk
ensure that Kerns will be available to post Warrant, if not, it should be directed to someone who will be available to post and sign the return



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 4 

Ordinances 
 
For Articles 4 through xx, an underline indicates an addition and a strikethrough 
indicates a deletion. 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Town of 
Mount Desert Alewife Ordinance” be enacted?  The ordinance reads, in its entirety, 
“Regulations for the taking of alewives and blue back herring shall be as follows:  For the 
year July 1,2024 through June 30, 2025 there shall be no taking of Alewives and Blue Back 
Herring in the Town of Mount Desert.” 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Disbursement 
Warrant Ordinance” of the Town of Mount Desert be enacted? 
 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
DISBURSEMENT WARRANT ORDINANCE 

 
ADOPTED May 3, 2011 
AMENDED May 7, 2024 

. 

. 

. 
 

Section 4.  The effective date of this Ordinance is May 3, 2011 May 7, 2024 
 
Section 5.  This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on 
May 3, 2026. 
 
Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the 
ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 
2022 referendum election. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Consumer Fireworks 
Ordinance” of the Town of Mount Desert be enacted? 
 

Consumer Fireworks Ordinance 
TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 

 
Enacted May 8, 2012 

Amended May 7, 2024 



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 5 

. 

. 

. 
 

Section 4.  The effective date of this Ordinance is May 8, 2012 May 7, 2024 
 
Section 5.  This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on 
May 4, 2027. 
 
Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the 
ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 
2022 referendum election. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Special Amusement 
Permit Ordinance” of the Town of Mount Desert be enacted? 
 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
Special Amusement Permit Ordinance 

 
Enacted March 2, 2004 

Amended March 8, 2005 
Amended August 11, 2020 

Amended May 7, 2024 
. 
. 
. 

 
5.  Period of Ordinance 
 

This Ordinance shall remain in effect for a period of fifteen (15) years from the 
effective date, or the date of the latest amendment thereafter. 

 
Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the 
ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 
2022 referendum election. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 HARBOR? Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “x” be 
enacted?  See Appendix B (pg. XX) 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 17 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Short-Term Rental 
and Vacation Rental Licensing Ordinance Ordinance” be enacted?  See Appendix X (pg. 
XX) 
 
Explanatory note:   This Article is to adopt a licensing ordinance for Short Term 
Rentals and Vacation Rentals. 
 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 
 

Gifts 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to authorize the Selectboard to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional 
Gifts (MRSA 30-A §5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or funds on 
behalf of the Municipal Fire Department.  It is understood that any funds received will be 
placed in the Fire Equipment Reserve Fund. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to authorize the Selectboard to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, 
federal and other funds (including gifts and grants, as well as funds received under the 
American Rescue Plan Act and similar legislation) received during the fiscal year 2024-2025 
for Town purposes, provided that such additional funds do not require expenditure of local 
funds not previously appropriated. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 
 
 

Leases, Agreements, Easements, Deeds, Sales, Acceptance of Private Roads and 
Sewers [revise as necessary] 

 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to authorize the Selectboard to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the 
Northeast Harbor Marina to the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year beginning 
July 1, 2024 under such terms and conditions as the Selectboard, in its sole discretion, 
deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 

Claire Woolfolk
when writing new Warrant Articles, whether for gifts or requests, be sure to have MMA Legal review wording and tell them what the desired end result is



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 18 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to authorize the Selectboard, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the 
Northeast Harbor Marina to the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of one (1) 
year beginning July 1, 2024 under such terms and conditions as the Selectboard, in its sole 
discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will 
authorize the Selectboard, to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood 
House Club, Inc. for management and maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for a 
term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2024 under such terms and conditions as the 
Selectboard, in its sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept Denning 
Brook Road and Timber Ridge Road, serving the Denning Brook Estates Homeowners’ 
Association (DBEHOA), as defined below and subject to the conditions set forth below.  
 
Section 1. Denning Brook and Timber Ridge Roads (the “Roads”) are private roads 
located in the Village of Somesville. Denning Brook Road is approximately 2,000 feet in 
length starting at State Route 102 and terminating in a cul-de-sac. Timber Ridge Road is 
approximately 250 feet beginning at Denning Brook Road and terminating in a cul-de-
sac. The DBEHOA have offered voluntarily to transfer their interests in the Roads to the 
Town without claim for damages. The Town shall accept the Roads as Public Roads in 
conformance with the Town’s Public Road Acceptance Ordinance (the “Ordinance”) as 
last amended at the May 8, 2018, annual Town meeting, provided that all conditions of 
the Ordinance have been met to the satisfaction of the Selectboard as determined at a 
meeting of said Selectboard on or before April 30, 2025. Said conditions include, but are 
not limited to, the following:  

First, the DBEHOA shall deliver their deed to the Town, duly executed and in proper 
form for recording, conveying in fee simple, without condition, exception, or reservation, 
the full title to the land underlying the Roads, being a strip of land 50 feet in width or 
greater, as laid out in the said subdivision. Notwithstanding the delivery of said deed, the 
deed shall not be deemed to have been accepted until and unless the Selectboard has 
determined that all said conditions have been met, as provided above. The cost of 
preparing, executing, and delivering said deed shall be paid by DBEHOA.  

Second, the said owners shall have provided to the Town Manager, on or before April 
30, 2025, evidence of good title to the Road, as set forth in item “First” above, allowing 
use of the Roads as a Public Road. Such evidence shall be in the form of a commitment 
for title insurance insuring the Town of the said condition of the title to the Roads and the 
underlying land, issued by a title insurer satisfactory to the Town Manager and at a 
satisfactory premium. The cost of obtaining such commitment shall be paid by the 



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 24 

 
 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates.  If the actual 
amount of the total debt service for the bond issue (or Amortization) varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

 To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will 
authorize the Selectboard, to consent to the reallocation of $16,500 in Town funds originally 
contributed by the Town to the Mount Desert Community Development Corporation (the “CDC”) 
in 2019 to partially finance construction of a park, but which the CDC has requested be 
reallocated to the purchase of refrigeration equipment for the municipal skating rink. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will 
vote to authorize the Town to pay for design services in that coordinated effort with the 
Northeast Harbor Fleet for Shore Road Sidewalks. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to approve July 1, each year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable 
providing that all unpaid taxes on September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest at an 
annual rate of 8.5% (percent) per year.  (Tax Club members are exempt within the terms and 
conditions of the Town’s Tax Club Agreement.) 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to authorize the Tax Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers 
whereby: (1) the taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town based on 
the taxpayer’s estimated and actual tax obligation for current year property taxes (real estate 
and/or personal); (2) the Town agrees to waive interest on timely payments; (3) the Town 
authorizes the Tax Collector to accept payment of taxes prior to commitment of taxes; (4) the 
agreement automatically terminates if two consecutive payments are missed and the 
taxpayer thereupon becomes subject to the same due date and interest rate as other, 



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 25 

nonparticipating taxpayers; (5) only taxpayers who are paid in full on their property tax 
obligations may participate; and (6) interested taxpayers shall apply annually for participation 
by the date shown on the application, date and application format to be determined by the 
Tax Collector. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to 
accept pre-payment of property taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated 
amount to be committed in the subsequent year, with no interest to be paid on same. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to set the interest rate to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the 
rate of 4.25% (percent) per year. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to authorize expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of 
Assessment Review, or Selectboard together with any interest due thereon from the Town, 
during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, in an aggregate amount not to exceed the 
property tax commitment overlay. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to authorize the Selectboard to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than 
real property, with a value of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) or less under such terms and 
conditions as it deems advisable. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to authorize the Selectboard to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to 
convey titles obtained under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabitants of 
the Town any land and/or buildings, including trailers, in lieu of payment of taxes except that 
the Selectboard have the power to authorize redemption.  Municipal Officers shall use the 
special sale process required by 36 M.R.S. § 943-C for qualifying homestead property if they 



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 26 

choose to sell it to anyone other than the former owner(s).  
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote 
to authorize the Selectboard to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation 
for same, under such terms and conditions as it deems advisable. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 
 

Municipal Revenue 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer 
XXXXX thousand dollars ($0. 00) from the Undesignated Fund Balance Account #100-38300 
to reduce the 2024 - 2025 tax commitment. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer 
XXXXX thousand dollars ($0. 00) from the Undesignated Fund Balance Account #100-XXXX 
for the State Revenue Surplus to reduce the 2024 - 2025 tax commitment. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and 
miscellaneous sources for the 2024 - 2025  Town Budget. 

 
Selectboard recommends  $XXX.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 
 

Municipal Appropriations 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 200 through 211 General Government – 
Governing Body (Selectboard), Municipal Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, 

Claire Woolfolk
Need New article account balance state revenue surplus

Town Clerk
Durlin, remember to adjust if money is transferred from the undesignated Fund Balance. (art. 24)



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 

Warrant Page 27 

Planning Board, Finance, Treasurer, Tax Collector, Assessment, Code Enforcement, 
Unallocated Funds, Human Resources, Technology, and Contracted Municipal and 
Community Oriented Services for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 

Gov. Body (Bd of Selectboard): 37,058.00 
Town Clerk: $151,240.00 
Elections: $16,000.00 
Finance: $221,044.00 
Tax Collector: $22,616.00 
Code Enforcement: $322,826.00 
Human Resources: $51,912.00 
Town Management: $482,704.00 

Registrar:  $3,000.00 
Planning Board: $120,613.00 
Treasurer: $110,452.00 
Assessment: $156,081.00 
Unallocated: $99,800.00 
Technology: $248,992.00 
CMCOS:  $143,000.00 

Selectboard recommends $2,187,338.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $2,187,338.00.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 

To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 
2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 

Selectboard recommends $5,000.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $5,000.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 

To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2024 
- 2025 Town Budget.

Selectboard recommends $232,580.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $232,580.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 

Selectboard recommends $12,250.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $12,250.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 

To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 401, 405, 407 and 408 Public Safety – 
Police and Communications (Dispatch) for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 

Police: $1,155,094.00  Communications: $477,938.00 
Shellfish: $3,403.00    Animal Control: $4,480.00     

Selectboard recommends $1,640,915.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $1,640,915.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 28 

 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire 
Department, Hydrants, and Emergency Management for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 
 

Fire: $2,501,492.00   Hydrants: $273,500.00   Emergency Management: $1,000.00 
 
Selectboard recommends  $2,775,992.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $2,775,992.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - 
Roads, Waste Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 
Environmental Sustainability for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 
 

Roads: $2,049,380.00 Buildings/Grounds: $277,154.00 
Parks/Cemeteries: $60,202.00 Waste Management: $809,806.00 

Environmental Sustainability:  $28,250.00 
 
Selectboard recommends  $3,224,792.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater 
Treatment) for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 
 

Sewer Capital:  $ 0.00 Sewer Operation:  $764,286.00  
 

Wastewater Treatment 
Northeast Harbor Plant: $203,625.00 Somesville Plant:  $80,000.00 
Seal Harbor Plant: $153,758.00 Otter Creek Pmp Station: $35,500.00 

 
Selectboard recommends  $1,237,169.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & 
Maintenance) for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $5,900.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $5,900.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 29 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for 
the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $10,000.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $10,000.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2024 - 2025 Town 
Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $2,030,632.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $2,030,632.00 (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert 
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 851 Libraries, Village Improvement 
Societies, Recreation, and Public/Social Service Agencies for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 
 

Libraries: $XXX.00 Village Improvement Societies: $XXX.00 
Recreation: $XXX.00 Public/Social Service Agencies: $XXX.00 

 
Selectboard recommends  $XXX.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2024 - 
2025 Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $1,705,927.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 
 
Written Ballot required for Article xx 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to increase 
the property tax levy limit by $XXX.00.  See Appendix XYZ (pg. XX). 
 
Explanation: The State Legislature passed a “tax reform” law known as LD#1. This bill 
created a maximum municipal tax levy based upon this year’s tax, plus an allowance for 
inflation and the Town’s tax base growth due to new construction.  However, LD#1 allows 
Mount Desert voters to increase that tax cap with the approval of a simple majority of the 
voters at Town Meeting.  The only requirement is that a secret vote must be taken by written 
ballot. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends  (passage)   (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 

Claire Woolfolk
Add Table of Budget Breakdown???  Per BOS no, per WC yes…



BLACK – voted or Non-BS/ GREEN – Ready to review/ RED – Not ready 
 

 
Warrant Page 30 

 
 
 
 

Marina Proprietary Fund 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 
Selectboard’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget. 
 

Revenue: $924,415.00  Expense: $924,415.00 
 
Selectboard recommends (ratification) 
Warrant Committee makes no recommendation  

 
 
 

Elementary School Appropriations 
 

Note: Articles 50 through 60 authorize expenditures in cost center  
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Regular 
Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 20xx.  
 
School Board recommends  $XXX.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Special 
Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 20xx.  
 
School Board recommends  $XXX.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Career 
and Technical Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 
20xx. 
 
School Board recommends  $XXX.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Other 
Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 20xx.  
 
School Board recommends  $XXX.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $XXX.00  (XX Ayes; XX Nays) 
 



TREASURER’S 
WARRANTS 

 





 Warrants for  BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 2/5/2024

Description # Date Amount

A.  Warrants to be Approved and Signed: 
Town Invoices

AP#2448 02/05/24 970,155.93              

970,155.93$           
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
         (Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )

Town State Fees & P/R Benefits
AP#2445 01/18/24 1,914.59$                
AP#2446 01/25/24 100,852.41$           
AP#2447 01/31/24 7,547.26$                

Town Payroll
PR#2418 01/19/24 111,966.96$           
PR#2419 02/02/24 167,612.38$           

389,893.60$           

C.  Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices

School Payroll
PR#15 01/19/24 200,157.63$           
PR#16 02/02/24 93,399.78$              

Town Voids

293,557.41$           

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING 1,653,606.94$     

T:\TREASURER\SECURE FILES\1- FY 2024 Working Files\Select Board Meeting\2024.02.05 Selectboard Meeting -
\Exceptions Documents\0- Exception Report.xlsx######





To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
:
1
0

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

2
0
0
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
d
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
5
0
2
.
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
2
6
7
.
4
2
 
 
 
2
5
.
8
%

2
0
1
 
M
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
4
,
3
5
2
.
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
7
,
7
1
1
.
7
7
 
 
 
5
8
.
9
%

2
0
2
 
T
o
w
n
 
C
l
e
r
k
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
,
6
5
3
.
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
2
8
6
.
5
6
 
 
 
5
8
.
3
%

2
0
3
 
E
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
4
7
.
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
3
5
2
.
7
3
 
 
 
2
7
.
3
%

2
0
4
 
P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
,
4
5
8
.
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
0
,
1
9
5
.
0
9
 
 
1
5
7
.
8
%

2
0
5
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
,
0
0
5
.
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
,
8
4
5
.
8
2
 
 
 
5
6
.
9
%

2
0
6
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
,
1
4
6
.
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
,
0
6
5
.
7
9
 
 
 
6
2
.
2
%

2
0
7
 
C
o
d
e
 
E
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
,
3
8
0
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
,
1
0
3
.
1
0
 
 
 
5
6
.
7
%

2
0
8
 
U
n
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
5
2
0
.
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
,
4
7
9
.
5
2
 
 
 
2
9
.
7
%

2
0
9
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
1
0
9
.
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
9
0
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
5
.
6
%

2
1
0
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
2
,
4
6
0
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
4
2
6
.
4
0
 
 
 
7
3
.
5
%

2
1
1
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
M
u
n
 
&
 
C
o
m
m
-
O
r
i
e
n
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

3
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

3
5
0
 
R
u
r
a
l
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
,
5
8
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
4
7
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
9
1
.
7
%

4
0
1
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
6
,
4
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
7
,
1
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
7
,
9
4
6
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
9
,
1
6
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
3
5
.
8
%

4
0
3
 
F
i
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
1
,
3
3
6
,
2
2
1
.
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
1
,
1
1
2
.
6
6
 
 
 
5
8
.
9
%

4
0
4
 
H
y
d
r
a
n
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
5
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
%

4
0
5
 
S
h
e
l
l
f
i
s
h
 
C
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
6
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
8
6
.
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
6
3
.
4
8
 
 
 
5
4
.
1
%

4
0
7
 
A
n
i
m
a
l
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
8
 
C
o
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
4
,
3
2
7
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
1
,
9
6
7
.
6
1
 
 
 
5
3
.
5
%

4
0
9
 
E
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

5
0
1
 
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
1
,
3
3
5
,
0
8
3
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
8
,
9
8
4
.
5
1
 
 
 
6
6
.
6
%

5
0
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
9
,
9
6
5
.
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
5
,
1
9
1
.
6
0
 
 
 
5
7
.
7
%

5
0
6
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
,
4
8
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
9
,
1
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
8
.
5
%

5
1
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
5
,
9
6
0
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
,
6
5
8
.
6
1
 
 
 
5
7
.
3
%

5
2
0
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
&
 
G
r
o
u
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
,
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
,
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
4
,
3
8
8
.
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
,
1
2
1
.
1
3
 
 
 
6
2
.
6
%

5
2
5
 
P
a
r
k
s
 
&
 
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
,
1
0
5
.
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
9
6
.
6
8
 
 
 
7
1
.
6
%

5
3
0
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
S
u
s
t
a
i
n
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
2
6
4
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
4
8
5
.
6
1
 
 
 
7
0
.
7
%

6
0
5
 
R
e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
6
4
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
5
.
2
9
 
 
 
8
0
.
8
%

7
0
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
9
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
1
,
7
5
6
,
9
2
2
.
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
,
0
6
6
.
1
6
 
 
 
7
9
.
7
%

8
5
1
 
3
r
d
 
P
a
r
t
y
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
A
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
1
3
0
,
7
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
1
4
,
1
3
1
,
3
6
7
 
 
 
9
,
2
8
5
,
1
2
0
.
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
,
8
4
6
,
2
4
5
.
6
2
 
 
 
6
5
.
7
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
:
1
0

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

1
0
1
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
3
,
5
9
1
.
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
0
,
7
2
9
.
6
6
 
 
 
6
3
.
8
%

1
0
2
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
1
7
.
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
8
2
.
3
1
 
 
 
4
0
.
8
%

1
0
3
 
B
a
r
t
l
e
t
t
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
4
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
3
5
.
1
1
 
 
 
1
1
.
8
%

1
0
4
 
S
o
m
e
s
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
1
0
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
9
4
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
1
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
2
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
5
.
9
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
4
,
7
5
4
.
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
,
3
2
5
.
5
2
 
 
 
6
1
.
6
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
:
1
0

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
8
2
,
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
1
4
,
9
8
3
,
4
4
7
 
 
 
9
,
8
0
9
,
8
7
5
.
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
5
,
1
7
3
,
5
7
1
.
1
4
 
 
 
6
5
.
5
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
48

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 5

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
01

34
th

ro
ug

h
32

01
94

83
5,

58
4.

47
$ 

   
   

Ch
ec

k 
pa

ym
en

ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

59
77

5
an

d
59

77
5

19
6.

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

31
74

th
ro

ug
h

31
99

13
4,

37
4.

48
$ 

   
   

AC
H 

Pa
ym

en
ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
97

0,
15

5.
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
7
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
9
9
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
9
9
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
B
E
N
D
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
2
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
1
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
9
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
4
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
4
.
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
1
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
7
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
.
0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
8
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
5
6
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
3
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
.
4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
.
1
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
4
0
.
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
9
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
3
3
.
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
8
4
2
.
0
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
 
E
M
R
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
0
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
0
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
1
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
5
8
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
4
8
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
2
8
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
2
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
6
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
4
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
4
3
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
9
8



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
4
2
2
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
3
 
H
A
R
R
I
S
 
C
O
M
P
U
T
E
R
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
1
2
0
.
8
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
1
2
0
.
8
6

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
 
H
E
D
E
F
I
N
E
 
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
&
 
D
E
S
I
G
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
3
1
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
3
1
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
0
 
I
N
D
U
S
T
R
I
A
L
 
P
R
O
T
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
6
 
D
U
R
L
I
N
 
L
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
7
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
C
O
M
M
E
R
C
I
A
L
 
T
I
R
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
4
9
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
4
9
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
7
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
7
 
N
O
E
L
 
M
U
S
S
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
2
6
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
2
6
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
5
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
S
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
7
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
5
1
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
1
1
4
.
8
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
7
6
6
.
7
5



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
3
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
4
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
4
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
1
 
N
O
R
T
H
E
A
S
T
 
E
M
E
R
G
E
N
C
Y
 
A
P
P
A
R
A
T
U
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
1
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
1
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
1
 
P
I
T
N
E
Y
 
B
O
W
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
0
.
9
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
0
.
9
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
0
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
2
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
3
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
4
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
4
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
3
0
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
1
9
.
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
7
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
.
4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
3
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
6
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
0
1
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
3
8
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
3
0
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
8
4
.
3
4



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
1
0
5
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
7
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
8
6
.
0
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
6
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
3
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
.
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
.
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
2
.
4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
8
1
.
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
,
3
6
4
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
.
8
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
7
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
4
5
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
1
1
 
A
L
L
I
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
4
1
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
4
1
.
6
9



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
3
3
 
A
T
 
M
A
I
N
E
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
8
3
 
A
T
L
A
N
T
I
C
 
F
L
U
I
D
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
Y
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
1
2
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
1
2
.
9
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
6
1
 
A
U
T
O
M
O
T
I
V
E
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
T
O
O
L
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
0
1
 
A
U
T
O
Z
O
N
E
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
U
T
O
Z
O
N
E
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
.
4
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
 
P
U
B
L
I
S
H
I
N
G
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
9
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
8
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
6
4
4
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
9
4



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
4
8
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
7
1
9
.
1
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
9
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
.
3
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
2
3
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
4
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
4
.
1
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
6
5
 
C
A
R
R
O
L
L
 
D
R
U
G
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
4
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
R
O
L
L
 
D
R
U
G
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
1
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
R
O
L
L
 
D
R
U
G
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
R
O
L
L
 
D
R
U
G
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
0
5
.
0
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
3
.
0
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
7
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
3
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
3
.
4
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
8
4
 
D
 
&
 
R
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
O
N
I
C
S
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
1
5
.
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
1
5
.
1
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
1
9
 
D
A
R
L
I
N
G
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
.
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
.
0
8

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
1
6
 
D
I
R
I
G
O
 
S
A
F
E
T
Y
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
5
8
 
T
E
A
M
 
E
J
P
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
,
 
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
4
3
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
4
3
.
6
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
1
2
0
 
G
A
R
Y
 
S
A
U
N
D
E
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
1
5
 
F
I
R
E
 
T
E
C
H
 
&
 
S
A
F
E
T
Y
 
O
F
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
5
1
4
 
F
I
R
E
H
O
U
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
7
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
2
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
5
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
3
3
 
F
R
E
D
'
S
 
C
O
F
F
E
E
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
.
8
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
.
8
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
9
1
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
5
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
2
3
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
9
1
8
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
9
4
2
.
2
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
1
0
 
G
O
N
E
T
S
P
E
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
0
.
5
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
0
.
5
3

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
5
7
7
 
G
O
V
E
R
N
M
E
N
T
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
R
S
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
5
4
 
G
R
A
I
N
G
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
3
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
I
N
G
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
I
N
G
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
4
.
0
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
8
.
3
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
3
0
 
G
R
A
N
I
T
E
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
C
A
R
E
E
R
 
C
O
U
N
C
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
7
0
 
G
R
O
U
P
 
D
Y
N
A
M
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
.
7
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
 
H
A
M
I
L
T
O
N
 
M
A
R
I
N
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
I
L
T
O
N
 
M
A
R
I
N
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
7
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
3
.
0
4



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
0
6
4
 
H
A
R
C
R
O
S
 
C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
9
6
 
H
O
M
E
 
D
E
P
O
T
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
1
7
6
 
H
U
B
 
I
N
T
E
R
N
A
T
I
O
N
A
L
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
3
8
 
I
D
E
X
X
 
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N
,
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
4
.
0
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
D
E
X
X
 
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N
,
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
4
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
D
E
X
X
 
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N
,
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
7
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
3
5
.
8
9

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
.
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
0
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
4
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
4
7
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
9
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
5
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
6
.
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
0
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
0
.
9
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
3
.
4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
2
6
.
3
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
.
7
2



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
.
7
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
6
9
 
M
D
I
 
R
E
G
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
2
,
6
8
9
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
D
I
 
R
E
G
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
2
,
6
8
9
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
5
,
3
7
9
.
3
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
5
2
 
M
O
T
O
R
O
L
A
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
9
1
7
.
4
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
O
T
O
R
O
L
A
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
8
0
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
0
2
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
S
P
R
I
N
G
 
W
A
T
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
6
8
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
O
S
P
I
T
A
L
 
&
 
H
E
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
3
5
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
T
O
W
N
 
&
 
C
I
T
Y
 
C
L
E
R
K
S
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
9
0
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
W
A
T
E
R
 
U
T
I
L
I
T
I
E
S
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
6
.
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
3
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
.
5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
9
4



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
2
7
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
0
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
4
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
6
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
4
.
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
0
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
2
.
3
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
5
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
6
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
2
.
8
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
8
6
5
 
N
A
T
I
O
N
A
L
 
E
L
E
V
A
T
O
R
 
I
N
S
P
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
5
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
8
8
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
3
1
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
9
2
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
0
0
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
6
9
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
0
3
.
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
0
9
7
.
1
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
3
6
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
T
I
R
E
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
S
 
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
T
I
R
E
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
S
 
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
0
.
1
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
4
7
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
6
5
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
9
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
3
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
5
9

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
9
4
 
O
L
V
E
R
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
5
1
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
5
1
.
4
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
0
6
 
O
N
L
I
N
E
 
M
O
O
R
I
N
G
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
6
5
 
P
E
R
M
A
-
L
I
N
E
 
C
O
R
P
 
O
F
 
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
5
.
2
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
5
.
2
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
6
5
7
 
S
E
W
 
A
N
D
 
S
A
V
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
9
3
 
S
P
E
C
I
A
L
T
Y
 
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
8
7
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R
,
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
4
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
4
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
0
0
 
T
R
O
J
A
N
 
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
5
.
7
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
5
.
7
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
7
.
4
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
4
2
 
U
S
A
 
B
L
U
E
B
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
.
0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
.
0
9

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
9
0
 
C
I
V
E
S
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
4
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
4
.
5
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
5
1
 
V
I
S
I
O
N
 
G
O
V
E
R
N
M
E
N
T
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
0
5
1
.
0
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
0
5
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
3
9
 
W
 
B
 
M
A
S
O
N
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
8
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
B
 
M
A
S
O
N
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
8
.
2
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
9
1
 
W
I
E
B
U
S
C
H
,
 
C
H
R
I
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
2
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
6
0
 
X
E
R
O
X
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
3
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
3
.
7
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
6
0
 
X
E
R
O
X
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
5
,
5
8
4
.
4
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
E
F
T
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
,
3
7
4
.
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

D
ire

ct
 D

is
bu

rs
em

en
t: 

Pi
tn

ey
 B

ow
es

   
   

   
   

   
  $

19
6.

98
 

Se
e 

en
d 

of
 re

po
rt 

fo
r C

as
h 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t J
ou

rn
al

   
   

   
To

ta
l  

 $
   

97
0,

15
5.

93
 



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
0
,
2
1
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
0
8
/
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
9
,
7
0
5
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
9
,
7
0
5
.
9
8



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
0
,
2
1
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
T
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
F
R

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
5
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
5
9
7
7
5
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
M
A
N
L
 
 
 
1
3
6
7
 
P
I
T
N
E
Y
 
B
O
W
E
S
 
G
L
O
B
A
L
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
I
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
M
A
N
U
A
L
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
5
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
 
 
2
4
4
8
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
 
 
2
4
4
8
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
0
8
/
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
5
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
45

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
18

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
01

29
th

ro
ug

h
32

01
29

1,
91

4.
59

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
1,

91
4.

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



24
18

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
19

, 2
02

4

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
16

24
3

th
ro

ug
h

16
29

7

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
66

39
5

th
ro

ug
h

66
40

8

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
11

1,
96

6.
96

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2445 & PR#2418 Approval Request-SECOND REQUEST
Date: Thursday, January 18, 2024 6:54:26 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved!
Sent from my iPhone

On Jan 18, 2024, at 6:14 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:


If you received my previous email, please disregard, this is the correct Warrants.
 
Greetings,
 
Attached are the following warrants for approval:
                                    Accounts Payable                #2445     total of          $1,914.59
                                    Payroll                                   #2418     total of          $111,966.96
 
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving
or rejecting.
 
 
I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we
have the one required email approval.
Thank you!
 
Lisa Young,
Finance Clerk, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
<4- AP2445.pdf>
<11- PR2418.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org




24
46

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
25

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
01

30
th

ro
ug

h
32

01
31

1,
12

8.
25

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

31
72

th
ro

ug
h

31
73

99
,7

24
.1

6
$ 

   
   

  
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
10

0,
85

2.
41

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2446 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 4:09:39 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved.

On Jan 24, 2024, at 4:03 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

 
Greetings,
 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2446 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the
amount of $100,852.41 for your approval.                      
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or
rejecting. 
I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have
the one required email approval.
Thank you!
Lisa Young,
Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
 
 
<4- AP2446.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


24
47

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
31

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
01

32
th

ro
ug

h
32

01
33

7,
54

7.
26

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
7,

54
7.

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



24
19

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

, 2
02

4

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
16

29
8

th
ro

ug
h

16
35

0

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
66

40
9

th
ro

ug
h

66
41

9

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
16

7,
61

2.
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2447 & PR#2419 Approval Request
Date: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 5:48:57 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved
Sent from my iPhone

On Jan 31, 2024, at 4:42 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:


 
Greetings,
 
Attached are the following warrants for approval:
                                    Accounts Payable                #2447     total of          $7,547.26
                                    Payroll                                   #2419     total of          $167,612.38
 
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving
or rejecting.
 
 
I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we
have the one required email approval.
Thank you!
 
Lisa Young,
Finance Clerk, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
<4- AP2447.pdf>
<11- PR2419.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org






#15







16


	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2024-02-05
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, February 5, 2024

	Minutes
	MINUTES Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -2
	Blank Page

	Selectboard Minutes - 2024-01-16

	Appointments
	APPOINTMENTS ETC Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -3
	Blank Page

	Marshall Re_ LUZO liaison for Comprehensive Plan Committee
	BOS warden approval memo
	Paul Accomondo

	Consent
	CONSENT AGENDA Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -4
	Blank Page

	Clerk Memo - Shellfish Allocations
	Small Animal Clinic 2024
	Warrant Cmte. minutes 1_23_24 copy
	ANP Advisory Commission Minutes 2023_09_11 Draft 2 REV

	New
	NEW BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -6
	Blank Page

	1-2024 MDI Farmers Market
	2-2024 Help Portrait MDI
	NEH Village Center Improvements 2024.02.01
	FD Boat Memo
	State Revenue surplus
	Est. Revenues

	DRAFT Town Meeting Warrant 2024-02-01
	Greeting
	Election of Moderator
	Article 1. To elect a Moderator by written ballot.
	Election of Municipal Officers

	Article 2. To elect one member to the Selectboard for a term of three years, two members to the Mount Desert Elementary School Board for a term of three years, and one trustee to the Mount Desert Island Regional School District for a term of three years.
	Non-Voter Recognition

	Article 3. To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to speak during the2024 Annual Town Meeting.
	Article 4. Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert Alewife Ordinance” be enacted?  The ordinance reads, in its entirety, “Regulations for the taking of alewives and blue back herring shall be as follows:  For the year J...
	Article 5. Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Disbursement Warrant Ordinance” of the Town of Mount Desert be enacted?
	Article 6. Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Consumer Fireworks Ordinance” of the Town of Mount Desert be enacted?
	Article 7. Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Special Amusement Permit Ordinance” of the Town of Mount Desert be enacted?
	Article 8. HARBOR? Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “x” be enacted?  See Appendix B (pg. XX)
	Article 24. Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Short-Term Rental and Vacation Rental Licensing Ordinance Ordinance” be enacted?  See Appendix X (pg. XX)
	Gifts

	Article 25. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A §5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or funds on...
	Article 26. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, federal and other funds (including gifts and grants, as well as funds received under ...
	Leases, Agreements, Easements, Deeds, Sales, Acceptance of Private Roads and Sewers [revise as necessary]

	Article 27. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year beginni...
	Article 28. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of one (1) y...
	Article 29. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Selectboard, to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood House Club, Inc. for management and maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for a term...
	Article 30. To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept Denning Brook Road and Timber Ridge Road, serving the Denning Brook Estates Homeowners’ Association (DBEHOA), as defined below and subject to the conditions set forth below.
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
	Article 35. To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will authorize the Selectboard, to consent to the reallocation of $16,500 in Town funds originally contributed by the Town to the Mount Desert Community Development Corporation (...
	Article 36. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will vote to authorize the Town to pay for design services in that coordinated effort with the Northeast Harbor Fleet for Shore Road Sidewalks.
	Article 37. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to approve July 1, each year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable providing that all unpaid taxes on September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest a...
	Article 38. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers whereby: (1) the taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town base...
	Article 39. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-payment of property taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated amount to be committed in the subsequent year, with no interest to be paid on same.
	Article 40. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to set the interest rate to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the rate of 4.25% (percent) per year.
	Article 41. To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of Assessment Review, or Selectboard together with any interest due thereon from the Town, d...
	Article 42. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than real property, with a value of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) or less under such te...
	Article 43. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to convey titles obtained under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabita...
	Article 44. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation for same, under such terms and conditions as it deems advisable.
	Municipal Revenue

	Article 45. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer XXXXX thousand dollars ($0. 00) from the Undesignated Fund Balance Account #100-38300 to reduce the 2024 - 2025 tax commitment.
	Article 46. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer XXXXX thousand dollars ($0. 00) from the Undesignated Fund Balance Account #100-XXXX for the State Revenue Surplus to reduce the 2024 - 2025 tax commitment.
	Article 47. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and miscellaneous sources for the 2024 - 2025  Town Budget.
	Municipal Appropriations

	Article 48. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 200 through 211 General Government – Governing Body (Selectboard), Municipal Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planni...
	Article 49. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 50. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 51. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 52. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 401, 405, 407 and 408 Public Safety – Police and Communications (Dispatch) for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 53. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire Department, Hydrants, and Emergency Management for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 54. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - Roads, Waste Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 Environmental Sust...
	Article 55. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater Treatment) for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 56. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & Maintenance) for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 57. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 58. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 59. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 851 Libraries, Village Improvement Societies, Recreation, and Public/Social Service Agencies for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 60. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.
	Article 61. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to increase the property tax levy limit by $XXX.00.  See Appendix XYZ (pg. XX).
	Article 62. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the Selectboard’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget.
	Elementary School Appropriations

	Article 63. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Regular Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 20xx.
	Article 64. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Special Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 20xx.
	Article 65. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Career and Technical Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 20xx.
	Article 66. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Other Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 20xx.


	Warrant
	TREASURERS WARRANTS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -7
	Blank Page

	Treasurer's Warrant
	0- Exception Report.pdf
	######

	0b- FY24 Budget Report.pdf
	1- AP2448 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP Cover Sheet

	2- AP2448 GL Distribution Journal.pdf
	3- AP2445 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	4- PR2418 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	5- Re_ Warrant AP#2445 & PR#2418 Approval Request-SECOND REQUEST.pdf
	6- AP2446 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	7- Re_ Warrant AP#2446 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	8- AP2447 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	9- PR2419 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	10- RE_ Warrant AP#2447 & PR#2419 Approval Request.pdf
	11- MDES PR15 BOS & UPLOAD.pdf
	12- MDES PR16 BOS & Upload.pdf
	Blank Page


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



